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4 Sciarani & Co.

Certified Public Accountants
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORI

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Yerington, Nevada

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Yerington, Nevada, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City of Yerington’s basic financial statements as listed in

the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of inteinal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards 1equire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the 1isks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fiaud o1 error In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in ordet to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions

-1-
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
tespects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of the City of Yerington, Nevada, as of June 30,
2014, and the respective changes in financial position, and, whete applicable, cash flows
thereof, and the respective budgetary compaiison for the General Fund, Municipal
Administrative Assessment Fund, and Special Revenue Fund for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and the OPEB funding status on pages 4-12 and
58 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appiopriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Prior-Year Comparative Information

We have previously audited the City’s 2013 financial statements, and we expressed unmodified
audit opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information in our report dated
November 19, 2013. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, is consistent, in all matetial respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the City of Yetington, Nevada’s basic financial statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and supplementary
information section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund nonmajor financial statements referred to in the

preceding paragraph are the responsibility of management and were derived from and

relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic

financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
2-



including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements referred to above are faitly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The supplementary section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion
ot provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 5, 2014, on owr consideration of the City of Yerington, Nevada’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
City of Yerington, Nevada’s intetnal control over financial reporting and compliance.

L.QXYJW@"W ~Cy
Yerington, Nevada
November 5, 2014



CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

As financial management of the City of Yerington (the “City”), we offer the readers of these
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the reader in
focusing on the significant financial issues, provide an overview of the City’s financial activities,
identify any significant changes in financial position, and to identify individual issues and
conceins.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented herein, in conjunction
with the financial statements and notes to gain a more complete picture of the information
presented.

Financial Highlights

) The City’s governmental net position increased $38,945 to $4,820,049 fiom $4,781,104 in
2013 The City’s governmental investment in capital assets exceeds related debt by
$4,170,4291in 2014

. The City’s business-type activity net position increased by $42,012 to $23,109,109 from
$23,067,097 in 2013. The City’s business-type activity investment in capital assets
exceeds related debt by $18,037,771 in 2014

. The City’s total expenses were $3,658,880 consisting of $1,671,893 in governmeital
activities and $1,986,987 in business type expenses.

. The City’s total revenues were $3,739,837 consisting of $1,710,838 in governmental
activities and $2,028,999 in business type activities.

. The City’s primary revenue sources are charges for services of $2,172,379 and
consolidated taxes of $378,616. These two revenue sources comprise 58.1% and 10.1%,
respectively, of total revenues.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s financial
statements, which are comprised of the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial
statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the basic financial statements.



Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide an overview of the City’s
financial position by governmental and business-type activities, as well as the government as a
whole. The Statement of Net Position combines and consolidates all of the City’s curent
financial resources with capital assets and long term obligations, distinguishing between
governmental and business-type activities. The end result is net position which are segregated
into three components: invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted and unrestricted
position.

The Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of governmental and
business-type activities. Progiam revenue which directly offset costs of specific functions is
allocated to those functions, resulting in net expenses for governmental and business-type
activities. The City’s general revenues offset temaining costs resulting in the annual increase or
decrease in net position. This statement is intended to summatize the user’s analysis of the net
cost of various governmental services that is supported by general revenues.

Governmental activities reflect the City’s basic services on a functional basis. Departments
included within those functions are identified in the fund financial statements Ad valorem,
consolidated taxes, and other identified general revenues support the majority of these services.
Business-type activities reflect enterprise operations where a fee for service typically funds all or
most of the cost of operations, including depreciation.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objects. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds. Fund financial statements provide detailed
information about the City’s major funds. Based on restrictions placed on the use of monies, the
City has established many funds that account for the multitude of services provided to our
residents. The City’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, Administrative
Assessment, Special Revenue, Forfeiture, and Fixed Assets Acquisition.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities on the governmental-wide financial statements.
Most of the City’s basic services are reported in these funds that focus on how money flows into
and out of the funds and the year-end balances available for spending. These funds are 1eported
on the modified accrual basis of accounting that measures cash and all other financial assets that
can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-
term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services being provided,
along with the financial resources available.



Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities on the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long term effect of the government’s
short-term financing decisions. Both the goveinmental fund balance sheet and the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances povide a reconciliation
to facilitate the compatison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains a multitude of individual governmental funds Infoimation is presented
separately on the governmental fund balance sheet and on the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the major funds, which were identified
eatliet  Data fiom the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation Individual fund data of each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report, thereafter followed by individual fund
schedules.

Proprietary Funds — The City maintains one proprictary fund type. Fnterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities on the government-wide financial
statements. lhe City uses enterprise funds to account for water and sewer operations provided to
citizens within the City. The City’s major proprietary funds ate: Yerington Water Fund,
Yerington Sewer Fund, Mason Water Fund, and Crystal Clear Water Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements — 1 he notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided on the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
financial statement also presents combining and individual fund statements and schedules.

The City adopts an annual budget for all of its governmental and business-type individual funds
Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided for the General Fund and each major
Special Revenue F'und to demonstrate compliance with the budget and are presented as required
supplementary information.

Financial Analysis of the City

One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is “Is the City as a whole
better off or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information about the
City’s activities in a way that will help answer this question. These two statements 1eport the net
position of the City and the changes in them. One can think of the City’s net position -~ the
difference between assets and liabilities — as one way to measure financial health or financial
position. Over time, increases and decreases in the City’s net position are one indicator of
whether its financial health is improving o1 deteriorating. However, one will need to consider
other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, and new
or changed government legislation.



Net Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City, net position was $27,929,158 ($4,820,049 in
governmental activities and $23,109,109 in business-type acttvities) as of June 30, 2014 By fas,
the largest portion of the City’s net position (79.5%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.
land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is still outstanding The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investments
in its capital assets is tepotted net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay the debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities.

Table 1 provides a summary of the City’s net position for 2013 compared to 2014.

Table 1
Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-I ype Activities Total
Assets 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current Assets $ 1,011,486 § 954180 § 5324519 § 4,870,669 % 6,336,005 § 5,824,849
Restricted Cash - - 165,542 141,667 165,542 141,667
Capital Assets, Net 4,170,429 4,313,961 19,326,584 19,727,087 23,497,013 24,041,048
Total Assets 5,181,915 5,268,141 24 816,645 24,739,423 29,998,560 30,007,564
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 157.720 271,934 170,497 86,286 328,217 358,220
Long-Tetm Liabilities
Due Within One Year - - 42,173 41,520 42,173 41,520
Due After One Year 204,146 215,103 1,483,766 1,517,535 1,687,912 1,732,638
Total Liabilities 361,866 487,037 1,696,436 1,645,341 2,058,302 2,132,378
Deferred Inflow
Of Resources
System Development - - 11,100 26,985 11,100 26,983
Net Position
Invested in Capital
Assets, Net of Debt 4,170,429 4,313,961 18,037,771 18,373,091 22,208,200 22,687,052
Restricted Position 1,897 - 156,681 133,277 158,578 133,277
Unrestricted 647,723 467,143 4,914,657 4,560,729 5,562,380 5,027,872
Total Net Position $ 4,820,049 % 4,781,104  $23,109,109  $23,067,097 $27929158 § 27,848,201

Net position increased $80,957 to $27,929,158 in 2014 from $27,848,201 in 2013.



Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants
and Contribiutions

Capital Graots and
Contributions

General Revenues:

Property taxes
Other taxes
Franchise fees

Consolidated taxes
Unrestricted grants

Other

Total Revenues
Program Expenses:

General government

Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health

Cultural and recreation

Utilities

Total Expenses
Change in Net Position
Beginning Net Position

Ending Net Position

Table 2

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 273971 % 273,110 $ 1,898408 $ 1833207 § 2172379 & 2,106317
164,298 309,970 15,885 62,295 180,183 372,265
69,969 20,315 114,003 67,110 183,972 87,425
508,238 603,395 2,028,296 1,962,612 2,536,534 2,566,007
216,634 220,674 - - 216,634 220,674
211,193 180,707 - - 211,193 180,707
188,552 178,718 - - 188,552 178,718
378,616 367,007 - - 378,616 367,007
200,000 200,000 - - 200,000 200,000
7,603 9,260 703 1,704 8,308 10,964
1,710,838 1,759,761 2,028,999 1,964,316 3,739,837 3,724,077
295484 266,935 - - 295,484 266,935
51,776 53,315 - - 51,776 33,315
794,080 764,742 - - 794,080 764,742
453,515 722,338 - - 453,515 722,338
15,007 10,941 - - 15,007 10,941
62,031 72,314 - - 62,031 72,314
- - 1,986,987 2,028,678 1,986,987 2,028,678
1,671,893 1,890,585 1,986,987 2,028,678 3,658,880 3,919,263
38,945 (130,824) 42,012 (64,362) 80,957 (195,186)
4,781,104 4,911,928 23,067,097 23,131,459 27,848,201 28,043,387
$ 4,820,049 $ 4,781,104  § 23,109,109  $ 23,067,097 $27,929,158 § 278487201

Govermnmental Activities

While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net position, the
Statement of Activities provides answers as to the nature and scope of these changes. As can be
seen in Table 2 above, changes in net position were $38,945 for governmental activities and
$42,012 for business-type activities in fiscal year 2014



o The governmental activities total revenues in 2014 decreased by $48,923 from 2013. This
was mainly due to lower grant funding.

e  Governmental activities expenses in 2014 decreased by $218,692 from 2013 due to lower
grant expenditures and street expenditures in 2014

Business-1ype Activities

e The business-type activities total 1evenues increased by $64,683 in 2014 from 2013. The
increase was mainly due to increased capital conttibutions.

e The business type activities total expenditures decreased by $41,691 in 2014 compared to
2013 mainly due to decreased grant expenditures.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on
the near-term inflow, outflow, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful
in assessing the City’s financial requirements. In particular, unrestiicted fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

As of the end of the curtent fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of $847,774 which is an increase of $168,153 compared to the prior year
amount of $139,559. While the bulk of the governmental fund balances are not resetved in the
governmental fund statements, they may lead to restricted net position on the Statement of Net
Position due to being restiicted for use for a particular purpose mandated by the sources of the
resources, such as state statutes.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal yea,
the fund balance of the General Fund was $596,218. Fund balance represents approximately
44% of'the total General Fund expenditures.

The City’s General Fund ending fund balance increased by $179,301 in 2014. The key factors in
this increase is as follows:

o The Street Department expenditures were $225,577 less in 2014 than in 2013, due to
completion of a RTC project in 2013 that wasn’t repeated in 2014,



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City’s budget is prepared according to Nevada law and is based on generally accepted
accounting principles. The City adopts an annual budget following budget workshops and a
public hearing. The budget provides proposed expenditwmes and the means of financing them.
The most significant budgeted fund is the General Fund. With the General Fund supporting
many of our major activities such as our public safety programs, as well as most legislative,
judicial and executive activities the General Fund is monitored closely looking for possible
revenue shortfall or over spending by individual departments In summary, the noted differences
and explanations are as follows:

e Intergovernmental revenues were $67,665 over budget largely due to County sharing of road
revenues being $42.753 more than anticipated in 2014.

e The Police Department underspent their budget by $56,338 during the year.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The City’s investment in capital assets, net of depreciation, for its governmental

and business-type activities as of June 30, 2014 is $23,497,013 (net of accumulated

depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and systems,

improvements, equipment, vehicles, and roads and highways. In the notes to the financial

statements, Note 3 (Capital Assets) provides capital asset activity during 2014.

Major capital asset events during the current year include the following:

s |he Governmental Funds had $96,427 in asset additions for the year. Major additions were
$64,733 for security cameras and $26,109 for a police vehicle. The City is following a 5-

year capital improvement plan and limits the purchase of new assets as deemed necessary.

o The Business Type Funds had asset additions of $314,404 for the year. Major additions
consisted of a water meter replacement project and a telemetry project.

Long-Tetm Debt:

Governmental Activities:

There are no governmental activity debt obligations in 2014,

Business-1 vpe Activities:

The Water Fund’s outstanding State Revolving Fund Bonds balance was $511,079 Principal
payments of $23,046 were made during the year.

-10-



The Mason Water Fund’s outstanding USDA Rural Development Bonds balance was $346,604,
which was down by $12,007 from 2013,

The Crystal Clear Water Fund’s outstanding USDA Rural Development Bonds balance was
$478,742, which was down by $5,564 from 2013

In addition to the bonded debt, the City’s long-term obligations include compensated absences
Additional information on the City’s long-tetm debt can be found in Notes 4 and 5 of this
Inancial report.

Economic Factors and Next Years Budget

Ihe City Council and the management of the City consider many factors when setting the fiscal
year 2015 budget, tax 1ates, user fees and other charges. Some of those factors are the local
economy and the impact taxes, charges and rates have on the customers.

Ihe City of Yerington population growth has been very flat over the past several vears with an
estimated population of 3,106.

Current economic indicators have suggested that the current economy will remain in a low
growth mode for at least another year. Given these conditions, the City maintains a conservative
approach to spending while maximizing its local revenues.

All of these factors were considered in the preparation of the City’s 2015 budget. In conjunction
with the current economic factors, the City limited its anticipated spending for 2015, and asked
department heads to limit spending and capital outlay.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview
of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it 1eceives.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional
financial information should be directed to the City Manager of the City of Yerington, 102 South
Main Street, Yerington, Nevada, 89447

-11-
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30,2014

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2013)

Current Assets
Cash and investments - Note 2
Taxes receivable, secured roll
Use fees receivable, net of allowances
for uncollectibles
Due from other governments
Other receivables
Inventory

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets

Restricted cash and investments - Note 2
Capital Assets - Note 3

Land, improvements, and construction in progress

Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to othet governmenis
Accrued interest
Customets' deposits
Bail deposits
Current portion of long-term debt - Note 4

Total Current Liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Compensated absences - Note 5
Accrued OPEB liability - Note 4, 5 & 8
Long-term portion of bonds payable - Note 4
Total Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unearned system development grant - Note 6

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted - Note 9
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
767,528 $ 5,038,888
7,294 -
- 230,260
164,444 43,750
42,720 -
29,500 11,621
1,011,486 5,324,519
§ 165,542
1,438,995 317,513
2,731,434 19,009,071
4,170,429 19,492,126
5,181,915 24,816,645
101,729 122,546
33,530 19,225
20,621 18,304
- 1,561
- 8,361
1,840 -
- 42,173
157,720 212,670
33,053 28,610
171,093 160,904
_ 1,294,252
204,146 1,483,766
361,866 1,696,436
- 11,100
4,170,429 18,037,771
1,897 156,681
647,723 4,914,657
4,820,049 $ 23,109,109




TOTAL

2014 2013
5806416 $ 5,222,155
7,294 3,153
230,260 211,099
208,194 316,355
42,720 46,362
41,121 25,725
6,336,005 5,824,849
165,542 141,667
1,756,508 1,686,190
21,740,505 22,354,858
23,662,555 24,182,715
29,998,560 30,007,564
224,275 304,060
52,755 32,022
38,925 10,646
1,561 1,608
8,861 8,390
1,840 1,494
42,173 41,520
370,390 399,740
61,663 73,016
331,997 324,100
1,294,252 1,335,522
1,687,912 1,732,638
2,058,302 2,132,378
11,100 26,985
22,208,200 22,687,052
158,578 133,277
5,562,380 5,027,872
27,929,158 8 27,848 201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

Governmental Activities:
General government
Tudicial
Public safety
Public works
Health
Culture and recreation

Total Governmenial Activities
Business-Type Activities:
Water
Sewer

Total Business-type Activities

Total City

PROGRAM REVENUE
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTIRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS
$ 295484 % - 5 - $ -
51,776 35,182 - -
794,080 11,766 5,696 -
453,515 225,604 118,602 69,969
15,007 1,419 - -
62,031 - 40,000 -
1,671,893 273,971 164,298 69,969
1,365,083 1,241,079 15,885 75,023
621,904 657,329 - 38,980
1,986,987 1,898,408 15,885 114,003
$ 3,658,880 % 2,172379 § 180,183 § 183,972
General Revenues:
Propeity taxes, levied for general purposes
Other taxes
Franchise fees
Consolidated taxes

Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous income
Grants not restricted to a specific program
Total General Revenues
Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending



Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

BUSINESS-
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES 2014 2013
$ (295484) $ - $ (295,484) $ (266,935)
(16,594) - (16,594) (21,585)
(776,618) . (776,618) (739,787)
(39,340) - (39,340) (219,098)
(13,588) - (13,588) (7,471)
(22,031) - (22,031) (32,314)
(1,163,655) - (1,163,655) (1,287,190)
- (33,096) (33,096) (145,337)
- 74,405 74,405 79,271
- 41,309 41,309 (66,066)
{1,163,655) 41,309 (1,122,346) (1,353,256)
216,634 - 216,634 220,674
211,193 - 211,193 180,707
188,552 - 188,552 178,718
378,616 - 378,616 367,007
132 703 835 1,908
7,473 - TAT3 9,056
200,000 - 200,000 200,000
1,202,600 703 1,203,303 1,158,070
38,945 42,012 80,957 (195,186)
4,781,104 23,067,097 27,848,201 28,043,387
$ 4820049 §  23109,109 $ 27929158 §  27,848201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2013)

MUNICIPAL COURT
ADMINISTRATIVE SPECIAL
GENERAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE
FUND FUND FUND
Assets ‘
Cash and investments 523,678 9,246 50,765
Taxes receivable, secured roll 7,294 - -
Accounts receivable 36,570 - 6,150
Due from other governments 81,218 - 81,380
Fuel Inventory 29,500 - -
Total Assets 678,260 9,246 138,295
Liabilities
Accounts payable 20,084 133 72,556
Accrued compensation 33,530 - -
Due to other governments 20,596 25 -
Consumer / bail deposits and restitution 1,840 - -
Total Liabilities 76,050 158 72,556
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unavailable taxes receivable 5,992 - -
Fund Balances - Note 9
Nonspendable 29,500 - -
Committed 1,897 9,088 65,739
Assigned 219,509 - -
Unassigned 345,312 - -
Total Fund Balances 596,218 9,088 65,739
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
and Fund Balances 678,260 9,246 138,295




FIXED

ASSET
ACQUISITION TOTALS
FUND 2014 2013

$ 183,839 $ 767,528  $ 574,634
- 7,294 3,153
- 42,720 46,362
1,846 164,444 316,355
- 29,500 13,676
$ 185685 § 101148 S 954,180
$ 8,956 S 101,729  § 253,517
- 33,530 16,923

- 20,621 -
- 1,840 1,494
8,956 157,720 271,934
. - 5,992 2,625
- 29,500 13,676
176,729 253,453 262,704
- 219,509 32,125
- 345,312 371,116
176,729 847,774 679,621
$ 185,685 $ 1,011,486 § 954,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2013}

2014 2013

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $ 847,774 § 679,621

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not cutrent
financial resources and therefore not reported in the
governmental fund financial statements. 11,343,215 11,246,788

Accumulated depreciation has not been included in the
governmental fund financial statements. (7,172,786) (6,932,827)

Revenue reported as deferred revenue in the governmental fund financial

statements is recorded as revenue in the government-wide financial
statements. 5,992 2,625

Compensated absences have not been reflected in the
governmental fund financial statements (33,053) (41,579)

Post-employment health insurance that is not due and payable in the current
period and therefore is not reported in the governmental funds. {171,093) (173,524)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 4,820,049 % 4,781,104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

MUNICPAL COURT
ADMINISTRATIVE SPECIAL
GENERAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE
FUND FUND FUND
Revenues
Taxes 212,611 - 5 81,767
Licenses and permits 333,179 - -
Intergovernmental revenues 762,858 - 81,380
Charges for services 189,037 - -
Fines and forfeits 33,045 2,137 -
Other revenues 4,693 - 280
Total Revenues 1,535,423 2,137 163,427
Expenditures
Cutrent:
General government 212,079 - 63,001
Judicial 48,790 982 -
Public safety 773,743 - -
Public wotks 262,048 - 82,098
Health 14,950 - -
Culture and recreation 44,512 - -
Total Expenditures 1,356,122 982 145,099
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues over Expenditures 179,301 1,135 18,328
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) of Funds - - -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources over
Expenditures and Other Uses 179,301 1,155 18,328
Fund Balance, July 1 416,917 7,933 47,411
Fund Balance, June 30 596,218 9,088 5 65,739




FIXED

ASSET
ACQUISITION TOTALS
FUND 2014 2013

656 % 295,034  § 289,584

- 333,179 305,453

5,696 849,934 930,448

- 189,037 207,627

- 35,182 31,730

132 5,105 7,510

6,484 1,707,471 1,772,352

9,160 284,240 252,402

; 49,772 51,054

27,955 801,698 728,799

- 344,146 534,752

- 14,950 10,882

- 44,512 54,904

37,115 1,539,318 1,632,793
(30,631) 168,153 139,559

. - 5,114
- - (5,114)
(30,631) 168,153 139,559
207,360 679,621 540,062
176,729  § 847,774 % 679,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

2014 2013

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds b 168,153 § 139,559

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Current year capital outlays are expenditures in the governmental fund financial
statements, but they are shown as increases in capital assets in the
government-wide financial statements. 96,427 24,816

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds, since
it does not require the use of current financial resources. The effect on
the current year's depreciation is to decrease net assets. (239,959) (273,238)

Revenues from property taxes and other revenues is deferred in the fund financial
statements until they are considered available to finance current expenditures,

but such revenues are recognized when assessed in the government-wide financial
statements 3,367 (12,5913

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. 8,526 (1,014)

Future health insurance post-employment benefits are reported in the statement of
activities but do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in the governmnental fund financial statements 2,431 (54,681)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 5 38945 § {177,149)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITIURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACIUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Compar ative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Revenues
Taxes
Ad valorem taxes 3 221,692 % 221,692 § 212,611 % (9,081) &% 232,112
Licenses, Permits and Fees
Business licenses 90,000 90,000 94,875 4,873 92,982
Franchise taxes
Natural gas 26,000 26,000 25,073 (927) 22,149
Electric 113,500 113,500 136,330 23,030 128,509
Cable television 8,000 8,000 6,106 {1,894) 8,803
Sanitation 19,500 19,500 20,843 1,343 19,257
167,000 167,000 188,552 21,552 178,718
Non-business licenses and permits :
Animal licenses 300 300 81 (219) 237
Building permits 32,000 32,000 44,386 12,386 32,416
Planning and zoning 2,400 2,400 5,285 2,885 i,100
34,700 34,700 49,752 15,052 33,753
Total licenses and permits 291,700 291,700 333,179 41,479 : 305,453
Intergovernmental Revenues
State and federal shared revenues
Motor vehicle fuel tax 54,871 54,871 57,573 2,702 54,545
Consolidated tax disttibution 363,822 363,822 378,616 14,794 367,007
418,693 418,693 436,189 17,496 421,552
Other local government
shared revenues
Regional Transportation
Commission - - 2,865 2,865 175,108
Road construction tax - - - - 18,598
County road ad valorem tax - - 42,753 42,753 -
County ad valorem agreement 200,000 200,000 200,000 - 200,000
County gaming licenses 30,000 30,000 34,551 4,551 31,406
230,000 230,000 280,169 30,169 425,512
Total local government
shared revenues 230,000 230,000 280,169 50,169 425,512
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Fnded June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNI
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Payments in lieu of taxes
County patks agreement $ 40,000 $ 40,000 5 40,000 3 - 40,000
County airport contribution 4,000 4,000 4,000 - 4,000
State rural housing 2,500 2,500 2,500 - 2,500
46,500 46,500 46,500 - 46,500
Total Intergovernmental
Revenues 695,193 695,193 762,858 67,665 893,564
Charges for Services
Airport charges 12,500 12,500 12,156 (344) 12,313
Alrport fuel charges 198,000 198,000 159,534 (38,466) 174,449
Animal shelter 2,000 2,000 1,338 3,338 3,233
Weed abatement 4,000 4,000 4,243 243 9,996
Police services:
Night in the Country - “ 9.456 9,456 -
Other charges for services 2,000 2,000 2,310 310 7,636
Total Charges for Services 218,500 218,500 189,037 (29,463) 207,627
Fines and Forfeits
Municipal court fines 25,000 25,000 26,793 1,793 22,531
Other court fees - - 6,252 6,252 6,391
T otal Fines and Forfeits 25,000 25,000 33,045 8,045 29,422
Other Revenues
Interest income 130 130 - (130) -
Other revenue 2,200 2,200 4,693 2,493 5,979
Total Other Revenues 2,330 2,330 4,693 2,363 5,979
Total Revenues 1,454,415 1,454,415 1,535,423 81,008 1,674,157
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDIIURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
{With Comparative Totals for the ¥Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGEIED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Operating Expenditures
General Government
Mayor and Council
Salaries s 21,600 § 21,600 $ 21,600 5 - 3 21,600
Employee benefits 4,313 4,313 4,127 186 3,657
Services and supplies 3,100 3,100 882 2,218 1,847
Other - - - - 500
Total Mayor and Councii 29013 29,013 26,609 2,404 27,604
Management and Administration
Salaries and wages 52,482 52,482 49313 3,169 48,351
Employee benefits 26,902 26,902 23,358 3,544 25,847
Services and supplies 93,122 116,122 112,799 3,323 103,352
Total Management and
Administration 172,506 195,506 185,470 10,036 177,550
Total General
Govermment Function 201,519 224,519 212,079 12,440 205,154
Tudicial
Municipal Court
Salaries and wages 13,784 13,784 13,934 (150) 13,373
Employee_ benefits 8,023 8.023 8,228 (205) 7,181
Services and supplies 33,526 33,526 26,628 6,898 30,500
Total Judicial Function 55,333 53,333 48,790 6,543 51,054
Public Safety
Police Department
Salaries and wages 344,400 344,400 325,839 18,561 326,725
Employee benefits 234,139 234,139 228,546 5,593 199,457
Services and supplies 97,789 97,789 92,730 5,059 59,428
Total Police Department 676,328 676,328 647,115 29,213 585,610
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACIUAL VARIANCE 2013
Fire Department
Services and supplies
Contractual agreement $ 126,628 $ 126,628 $ 126,628 $ - 119,741
Total Public Safety Function 802,956 802,956 773,743 29,213 705,351
Public Wotks
Building Department
Salaries 20,665 20,665 10,729 9,936 23,249
Employee benefits 11,195 11,195 4,536 6,659 11,026
Services and supplies 3,458 3,458 5,705 (2,247) 704
Total Building Department 35,318 35,318 20,970 14,348 34,979
Stieet Department
Salaries and wages 21,138 21,138 18,365 2,773 20,462
Employee Benefits 5,325 5,325 5,426 (101) 8,488
Service and supplies 49,407 53,407 52,523 884 46,075
Capital outlay - - - - 226,866
Total Street Depairtment 75,870 79,870 76,314 3,556 301,891
Airport
Salaries and wages 3,213 3,213 3,340 (127) 3,370
Employee Benefits 2,551 2,551 1,649 902 1,820
Services and supplies 213,944 213,944 159,775 54,169 167,802
Total Airport 219,708 219,708 164,764 54,944 172,992
Total Public Works Function 330,896 334,896 262,048 72,848 509,862
Health
Animal Control
Salaries and wages 3,975 3,975 4,330 (355) 3,573
Employee benefits 3,538 3,538 2,371 1,167 1,920
Services and supplies 6,142 9,142 8,249 893 5,389
Total Health Function 13,655 16,655 14,950 1,705 10,882
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Compar ative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Culture and Recreation
Parks and recreation
Salaries and wages 5 11,873 5 11,873 5 12,961 b (1,088 3§ 19,401
Employee Benefits 6,982 6,982 6,710 272 10,458
Services and Supplies 32,632 32,632 24,841 7,791 25,045
Total Culture And
Recreation Function 51,487 51,487 44,512 6,975 54,904
Total Expenditures 1,455,846 1,485,846 1,356,122 129,724 1,537,207
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (1,431) (31,431) 179,301 210,732 136,950
Other Financing (Uses)
Contingency (30,000} - - - -
Transfer in from Municipal Court Fund - - - - 5,114
Totai Other Financing
Sources (Uses}) (30,000) - - - 5,114
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources
over Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses {31,431) (31,431) 179,301 210,732 142,064
Fund Balance, July | 287,788 287,788 384,792 97,004 242,728
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, June 30 3 256,357 8§ 256,357 564,093 b 307,736 384,792
RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS
The Compensated Absence Fund
is included within the General Fund
for GAAP basis reporting The
following items from this fund
reconcile the budget to GAAP basis.
Expenditures
General Government 3 (33,239) § (33,239 - ¥ (33,239) -
Fund Balance, July 1 33,239 33,239 32,125 (1,114 32,125
Fund Balance, June 30 hY - 3 - 32,125 3 32,125 32,125
Fund Balance - GAAP Basis, June 30 $ 596,218 $ 416,917

The accompanying notes are an integral pait of these {inancial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
MUNICIPAL COURT ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Compar ative 1otals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOQUNT
ORIGINAL BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Revenues
Fines and Forfeits
Municipal Court assessments h 800 % 800 396 % 5 § 945
Special facility assessments 1,200 1,200 1,241 41 1,363
Total Revenues 2,000 2,000 2,137 137 2,308
Expenditures
Judicial
Capital outlay - court assessments 5,600 5,600 - 5,600 -
Capital outlay special assessments 8,400 8,400 982 7,418 -
Total Expenditur es 14,000 14,000 982 13,018 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (12,000} (12,000) 1,155 13,155 2,308
Other Financing Uses
Transfer out - General Fund - - - - (5,114)
Excess of Revenues over
Expenditures and
Other Uses (12,000) (12,000} 1,155 13,155 (2,806)
Fund Balance, Tuly 1 12,739 12,739 7,933 (4,806) 10,739
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 739§ 739 9,088 % 3,349 § 7,933

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGEI AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Compar ative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Revenues
Room taxes $ 52,200 $ 52,200 § 81,767 § 29,567 56,319
Intergovernmental
Law enforcement block grant 4,400 4,400 - (4,400) -
Police equipment grant 5,000 5,000 - {(5,000) -
USDA communication grant 11,452 11,452 - (11,452) -
FAA aitport grants 427,500 427,500 5,236 (422,264} -
CDBG, video cametras 50,000 50,000 64,733 14,733 -
NFWF River grant 83,565 83,565 11,411 (72,154) 20,315
Total Intergovernmental 581,917 581,917 81,380 (500,537) 20,315
Other Revenues
Donations ] - - 280 280 577
Safety program 750 750 - (750) 750
Total Other 750 750 280 (470) 1,327
Total Revenues 634,867 634,867 163,427 (471,440) 77,961
Expenditures
Genetal Government
Safety program 750 750 - 750 -
Room tax distributions i 52,200 52,200 49,563 2,637 37,821
Intergovernmental, room tax - - 13,438 (13,438) 9,427
Total General Government 52,950 52,950 63,001 (10,051) 47,248
Public Safety
Police equipment grant 5,000 5,000 - 5,000 -
LEPC communication grant 4,400 4,400 - 4.400 -
USDA communication grant 11,452 11,452 - 11,452 -
Total Public Safety 20,852 20,852 - 11,452 -

24-



CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
~ (With Compar ative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Public Works

CDBG, video cameras $ 50,000 § 50,000 % 64,733 & (14,733) % -
Animal shelter grant - - 368 (368) 75
NEWF Walker River Grant 83,565 83,565 11,411 72,154 20,315

FAA airport grants 450,000 450,000 5,586 444,414 -
Total Public Works 583,565 583,565 82,098 501,467 20,390
Total Expenditures 637,367 657,367 145,099 502,868 67,638

Excess of Revenues over

Expenditures {22,500) (22,500 18,328 40,828 10,323
Fund Balance, July 1 37,088 37,088 47,411 10,323 37,088
Fund Balance, June 30 3 14,588 $ 14,588 b 65,739 § 51,151 $ 47,411

The accompanying notes are an integral pait of these financial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2013)
(Page I of 2)

UTILITY FUNDS
WATER SEWER MASON WATER
Current Assets
Unrestricted
Cash $ 2,035,378 § 1,861,175 % 959,219
Accounts receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful accounts 112,347 78,460 30,622
Reservation fee receivable 43,750 - -
Inventory of materials and supplies 10,828 793 -
Restricted Cash
Customer deposits 6,685 2,176 -
AB 198 capital reserve 40,513 - -
USDA loan reserve - - 27.900
Total Current Assets 2,249,501 1,942,604 1,017,741
Property, Plant And Equipment
I and and water rights 1,493 10,120 10,000
Construction in progress 228,563 - .ot
Building, wells, tanks, and
distribution system 9,319,806 - 4,640,227
Ireatment plant and collection system - 5,631,353 -
Vehicles 45,693 42,499 19,355
Maintenance equipment 2,703,921 358,532 64,885
Office equipment 66,624 45,080 16,222
12,366,100 6,087,584 4,750,689
Accumulated depreciation (2,838,078) (3,096,693) (985,167}
9,528,022 2,990,891 3,765,522

Total Assets 11,777,523 4,933,495 4,783,263




CRYSTAL CLEAR

TOTALS

WATER FUND 2014 2013
183,116 5,038,888 § 4,647,521
8,831 230,260 211,099
- 43,750 -
. 11,621 12,049
- 8,861 8,390
62,228 102,741 79,337
26,040 53,940 53,940
280,215 5,490,061 5,012,336
295,900 317,513 317,513
- 228,563 -
3,166,620 17,126,653 17,126,653
- 5,631,353 5,605,552
- 107,547 107,547
- 3,127,338 3,067,298
- 127,926 127,926
3,462,520 26,666,893 26,352,489
(420,371) (7,340,309) (6,625,402)
3,042,149 19,326,584 19,727,087
3,322,364 24,816,645 24,739,423
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2013)
(Page 2 of 2)
UTILITY FUNDS
WATER SEWER MASON WATER
Liabilities
Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5 113,657 % 7448 8§ 1,271
Accrued salaries and wages 10,254 8,267 647
Due to other governments 11,070 7,234 -
Accrued interest - - 1,282
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bonds / notes payable - due within one year 23,806 - 12,560
Customer deposits 6,685 2,176 -
165,472 25,125 15,760
Long-term liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 13,500 11,959 3,040
Accrued OPEB payable 77,305 68,286 13,776
Bonds, due after one year 487,273 - 334,044
Total Long-Term Liabilities 578,078 80,245 350,860
Total Liabilities 743,550 105,370 366,620
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unearned system development grant 11,100 - -
Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 9,064,555 2,990,891 3,418,918
Restricted - loan reserves 40,513 - 27,900
Unrestricted 1,917,805 1,837,234 969,825
Total Net Position $ 11,022873 § 4,828,125 § 4,416,643




CRYSIAL CLEAR TOTALS

WATER FUND 2014 2013
$ 170§ 122,546  $ 50,543
57 19,225 15,099
- 18,304 10,646
279 1,561 1,608
5,807 42,173 41,520
. 8,861 8,390
6,313 212,670 127,806
111 28,610 31,437
1,537 160,904 150,576
472,935 1,294.252 1,335,522
474,583 1,483,766 1,517,535
480,896 1,696,436 1,645,341
- 11,100 26,985
2,563,407 18,037,771 18,373,091
88,268 156,681 133,277
189,793 4,914,657 4,560,729
$ 2,841468 $ 23109109 $ 23,067,097

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

WATER SEWER MASON WATER
UTILITY UTILITY UTILITY
FUND FUND FUND
Operating Revenues
Use fees $ 721,679 % 625,394 § 277,958
Operating Expensés
Salaries and wages 237,813 212,607 47,536
Employee benefits 122,928 110,989 27,876
Service and supplies 241,253 152,330 61,235
Depreciation 379,979 145,978 95,012
Tota! Operating Expenses _ 981,973 621,904 231,659
Opetating Income (Loss) {260,294) 3,490 46,299
Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)
Interest earnings 187 313 167
Late fees / administrative fees 10,632 2,935 2,730
Water tank lease 12,415 - -
Willowereek agreement 19,000 29,000 -
Nevada Copper water reservation fee 87,500 - -
Water rights revenue 15,250 - -
Miscellaneous tevenues 677 - -
ARCO, systemn extension 15,885 - -
Sunset Hills system extension - - -
Insurance recovety - POOL/PACT 27,520 - -
Corp of Engineers GIS asset grant - - -
GIS Asset Management - - -
CDBG - Utility master plan - - -
CDBG - Utility master plan expenses - - -
Interest expense {17,279 - (15,848)
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 171,807 32,248 {12.951)
Income (Loss) before Contributions . (B8487) 35,738 33,348
Capital contributions 70,823 38,980 -
Change in Net Position {17,664} 74,718 33,348
Net Position, July 1 11,040,537 4,753,407 4,383,295
Net Position, June 30 $§ 11,022,873 % 4828125 % 4,416,643




CRYSTAL CLEAR

WATER TOTALS
EUND 2014 2013
64768 % 1,689,799  § 1,661,858
1,306 499,262 478,046
901 262,694 241,372
1,706 456,524 431,004
93,938 714,907 731,962
97,851 1,933,387 1,882,384
(33,083) (243,588) (220,526)
36 703 1,704
- 16,317 17,082
930 13,345 11,620
- 48,000 48,000
- 87,500 87,500
- 15,250 3,466
- 677 3,681
- 15,885 3,195
; - (3.195)
; 27,520 -
- - 21,600
- - (28,800)
- - 59,100
- - (59,100)
(20,473) (53.600) (55,199)
{19,507) 171,597 110,654
(52,590) (71,991) (109,872)
4,200 114,003 45,510
(48,390} 42,012 (64,362)
2,889,858 23,067,097 23,131,459
2,841,468 8 23,109,100 $ 23,067,097

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customets
Payments to Lyon County
Payments of personnel costs
Payments for service and supplies

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Water tank lease income
Water rights revenue
Willow Creek agtreement revenues
Nevada Copper reservation fee
Administrative fees
Insurance recovery - POOL/PACT
Miscellaneous income
ARCO, system extension
Sunset Hills, system extension
Corp of Engineers GIS asset grant
GIS Asset Management
CDBG - Utility master plan
CDBG - Utility master plan expenses

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital contributed from customers
Capital contributed from grantors
Acquisition of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Fiancing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest income

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30

WATER SEWER MASON
UTILITY UTILITY WATER
FUND FUND FUND
$ 761,201  § 661,856 S 278,270
(55,119) (38,158) -
(354,345) (318,514) (75,063)
(246,780) (156,741) (66,289)
104,957 148,443 136,918
12,415 - -
15,250 - -
19,000 29,000 :
43,750 - -
8,279 - 2,730
27,520 - -
3,050 2,935 -
129,264 31,935 2,730
70,823 38,980 -
(132,805) (56,801) (29,040)
(23,046) - (12,007)
(17,279) - (15,892)
(102,307) (17,821) (56,939)
187 313 167
132,101 162,870 82,876
1,950,475 1,700,481 904,243
$ 2082576 $ 1863351 § 987,119




CRYSTAL CLEAR

WATER
FUND 2014 2013

$ 62,569 % 1,763,896  § 1,748,048
- (93,277) (100,810)

(2,407) (750,329) (719,663)

(1,893) (471,703} {438.618)

58,269 448,587 488,957

- 12,415 10,630

- 15,250 3,466

- 48,000 48,000

- 43,750 87,500

930 11,939 15,001

- 27,520 -

- 5,985 6,752

- - 30,180
- - (3,193)

- . 21,600
. . (28,800)

- - 59,100

- . (10,920)

930 164,859 239,314

4,200 114,003 45,510
- (218,646) (21,388}
(5,564) (40,617) (39,123)
(20,476) (53,647) (55,142)
(21,840) (198,907) (70,143)

36 703 1,704

37,395 415,242 659,832

233,989 4,789,188 4,129,356

$ 271384 § 5204430 § 4,789,188

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

WATER SEWER MASON
UTILITY UTILITY WATER
FUND FUND FUND
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income b (260,294 8§ 3490 % 46,299
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 379,979 145978 95,012
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable {15,596) (1,678) 312
Decrease (increase) in inventory 813 (385) -
Increase (decrease) in consumer deposits 330 141 -
{Decrease) increase In accounts payable
and accrued liabilities _ (275) 897 {4,705)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5 104,957 $ 148,443  § 136,918




CRYSTAL CLEAR

WATER TOTALS
FUND 2014 2,013
$ (33,083) $ (243,588) $ (220,526)
93,938 714,907 731,962
(2,199) (19,161) (6,802)
- 428 1,333
- 471 (589)
_ (387) (4,470) (16,421)
$ 58269 $ 448587 § 488,957

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies:

The City of Yerington (the “City™) is an incorporated city operated under the applicable
laws and regulations of the State of Nevada. The financial statements of the City of Yerington
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial
reporting  The GASB periodically updates its codification of the exisiing Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which along with subsequent GASB
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units in
addition to other authotitative sources issued by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

GASB Statement No. 34 established a new financial reporting model for state and local
governments that include in addition of management’s discussion and analysis, government-wide
financial statements, required supplementary information and the elimination of the effects of
internal service activities and the use of account groups to the already tequired fund financial
statements and notes.

The GASB determined that fund accounting has and will continue to be essential in
helping governments to achieve fiscal accountability and should, therefore, be retained. The
GASB also determined that government-wide financial statements are needed to allow the users
of the financial reports to assess a government’s operational accountability. The new GASB
model integrates fund-based financial reporting and government-wide financial reporting as
complementary components of a single comprehensive financial reporting model.

Reporting Entity

The City, for financial purposes, includes all of the funds 1elevant to the operations of the
City of Yerington. The financial statements of the City of Yerington include those o1ganizations
that are controlled by or dependent on the City and fall under the direct jurisdiction of the Mayor
and City Council, which is a separately elected body by the citizens of the City. The Mayor and
City Council are legally separate and fiscally independent fiom other governing bodies, with
decision-making authority, authority to levy taxes, authority to prepare its own budget, the power
to designate management, the ability to significantly influence operations and is accountable for
fiscal matters. Therefore, the City is a primary government and is not reported as a component
unit by any other entity; nor is the City accountable for any other entity required to be included in
the City's annual financial report.

Basic Financial Statements:

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a
whole) and fund financial statements. The reporting model's focus is on either the City as a
whole or major individual funds (within the fund financial statements). Both the government-
wide and fund financial statements categotize activities as either governmental activities or
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

business-type activities. In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the
governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by
column, and (b) ate reflected, on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which incorporates
long-term assets and receivables as well as long-tetm debt and obligations

The government-wide Statement of Activities reflects both the gross and net cost per
functional category (public safety, public works, etc.) which are otherwise being supported by
general government revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues,
fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. The program revenues
must be directly associated with the function or a business-type activity. Program revenues
include revenues from fines and forfeitures, licenses and permits fees, service assessments, and
charges for services. The operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either
operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general
revenue (property, sales or gas taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc).
Historically, the previous model did not summarize or present net cost by function or activity.

This government-wide focus is more on the substantiality of the City as an entity and the
change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed fiom the government-wide
statements. Interfund activities relating to services provided and used between functions are not
eliminated.

The fund financial statements’ emphasis is on the major funds in either the governmental o1
business-type categories. Non-major funds {(by category) or fund type are summarized into a
single column.

The governmental major fund financial statements and the individual fund financial
statements are presented on a current financial resource and modified accrual basis of accounting.
This is the manner in which these funds are normally budgeted. This presentation is deemed
most appropriate to (a) demonstrate legal and covenant compliance, (b) demonstrate the source
and use of liquid resources, and (¢) demonstiate how the City's actual experience conforms to the
budget or fiscal plan. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different
measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements’ governmental
column, a reconciliation is presented on the page following each statement which briefly explains
the adjustments necessary to transform the fund based financial statements into the governmental
column of'the government-wide presentation.

The focus of the model is on the City as a whole and the fund financial statements,
including the major individual funds of the governmental and business-type categories, (by
category). Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed and compared
{between years and between governments) to enhance the usefulness of the information.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Basis of Presentation:

The accounts of the City of Yerington are organized on the basis of funds, each of which
is considered a separate accounting entity The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
sepatate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues,
and expenditures (o1 expenses, as appropriate). Resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled. The various funds are reported by generic classification within
the financial statements

The model, as defined in GASB Statement No. 34, establishes criteria (percentage of the
assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental
and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. Management may also elect to
designate a fund, which does not meet the criteria, as a major fund. The nonmajor funds may be
combined in a single column in the fund financial statements. Since the City has a limited
number of funds, all of the City’s funds are considered major funds as follows:

Major Funds:
Governmental Major Funds

(1) The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City Tt is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

(2) The Municipal Court Administrative Assessment Fund accounts for a special court
assessment for the use in the court system.

(4) Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds from spéciﬁc revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

(6) The Fixed Asset Acquisition Fund is used to accumulate 1esources for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds).

Proprietary Major Funds

(1) The Yerington Water Fund accounts for water utility activities in the City limits of
Yerington.

(2) The Yerington Sewer Fund accounts for sewer utility activities in the City limits of
Yerington

(3) The Mason Water Fund accounts for water utility activities in the nearby surrounding
areas of Mason, Nevada.

(4) - The Crystal Clear Water Fund accounts for water utility activities in the nearby
surrounding areas of East Mason Valley, Nevada.
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Non-Current Governmental Assets/Liabilities:
(GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the piesentation of Account Groups, but provides for
these records to be maintained and incorporates the infoimation into the Governmental column in

the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Basis of Accounting:

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues and expenditures/expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applies.

The Government-wide Financial Statements and the Proprietary Combining Financial
Statements are presented on an accrual basis of accounting, The Governmental Funds in the
Fund Financial Statements are presented on a modified accrual basis.

Governmental Funds:

The City of Yerington maintains its accounting records for all Governmental Funds on
the modified accrual basis of accounting as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). This method provides for recognizing expenditures, other than accrued interest
on general long-term obligations, at the time liabilities are incurred, while revenues are recorded
when measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period. Available is defined
as being due and collected within the current period or within 60 days after ycar-end. When
revenues are due, but will not be collected within this 60-day period, the receivable is recorded
and an offsetting deferred revenue account is established

Most major sources of revenues reported in Governmental Funds in the Governmental
Fund Financial Statements are susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis of
accounting. A summary of revenue recognition policies for all major revenue sources is as
follows:

Financial Reporting Income Recognition Policies

Accrued When
Available To Recognized Accrued
Finance Current When When
Type of Revenue Operations Received Earned
Property Taxes X
Consolidated Tax Distiibution X
Licenses and Permits X
Fines and Forfeits X
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes X
State Gaming License Fees X
Interest X
(Grants X
Miscellaneous Revenue X

-34-



CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Governmental funds in the Governmental Fund Financial Statements are accounted for on
a spending or “financial flow” measurement focus As such, only curent assets and current
liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets.

Proprietary Funds:

The Enterprise Iunds (Water, Sewer, Mason Water, and Crystal Clear Water Ultility
Funds) are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
ptivate business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses,
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the genetal public on a continuing basis
be financed o1 recovered primarily through user charges.

Private—sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December
1, 1989, are generally followed in proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with ot contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for their business-type activities, subject to this same limitation The District has
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Budget Policies:

The City of Yerington adheres to the Local Government Budget Act incorporated within
state statutes, which includes the following major procedures to establish the budgetary data,
which is reflected in these financial statements.

1. On o1 before Aptil 15 of each year, the budget officer shall prepare, or the
governing body shall cause to be prepared, on appropiiate forms presciibed by the
Department of Taxation for the use of local goveinments, a tentative budget for
the ensuing fiscal year. The tentative budget must be filed for public record and

inspection.
2. Public hearings on the tentative budget are held on the third Tuesday in May.
3. Prior to June 1, at a public hearing, the Council indicates changes, if any, to be

made to the tentative budget and adopts a final budget by the favorable vote of a
majority of the members of the Council. The final budget must then be forwarded
to the Nevada Tax Commission to approve the requested ad valorem tax rate.

4, Formal budgetary integration in the financial records of all funds is employed to
enhance management control during the vear.

5. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted
Accounting Piinciples (GAAP) other than the City's election to account and
budget for activities required to be reported within the General Fund in separate
funds. The City does not use the encumbrance method of accounting.

-35-




CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Appropriations lapse at year-end.

6. Budget amounts within funds, and between funds, may be transferred if amounts
do not exceed the original budget. Such transfers are to be approved by the
budget officer and/or the City Council, depending on established criteria. Budget
augmentations in excess of original budgetary amounts may not be made without
prior appioval of the City Council, following a scheduled and noticed public
hearing. During the year, the City Council approved one budget augmentation.

7. The above dates may be modified as necessary during years when the Nevada
Legislature is in session.

In accordance with state statutes, actual expenditures may not exceed budget
appropriations of the various governmental functions of the General Fund, or total appropriations
of the individual Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds. In Enterprise Funds, actual
expenses may not exceed the sum of budgeted operating and nonoperating expenses.

Cash and Investments

Cash balances from all funds are combined and, to the extent practicable, invested as
permitted by NRS 355170 Investments are stated at fair market value.

Pursuant to NRS 355.170, the City may only invest in the following types of securities:

- United States bonds and debentuies matuting within ten (10) years from the date
of purchase.

- Certain farm loan bonds.

- Securities of the United States Treasury, United States Postal Service or the
Federal National Mortgage Association maturing within ten (10) years from the
date of purchase.

- Negotiable certificates of deposit from commercial banks and insured savings and
loan associations within the State of Nevada.

- Certain securities issued by local governments of the State of Nevada.

- Other securities expressly provided by other statutes, including repurchase
agreements.

- Certain short-term commercial paper issued by U. S. Corporations.

- Certain "AAA" rated mutual funds that invest in Federal securities.

Cash Restiictions

Restricted cash balances represent cash held by the entity for specific purposes.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Entetprise Funds consider all highly
liquid investments (including testricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts;

Each year, the year-end accounts receivable balances in the enterprise funds are reviewed
and accounts believed to be uncollectible are identified. The allowance for doubtful accounts is
then adjusted to equal the anticipated loss and bad debt expense is charged for estimated losses
arising from the current yeai’s operation. Subsequently, the governing board reviews this list of
uncollectible accounts and if they agree the accounts are uncollectible and should be written off,
the receivable is charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts. Allowance for doubtful
accounts at June 30, 2014 for all Enterprise Funds is $1,350.

Interest Earned on Investments

Interest earned is allocated to the utility funds based upon the proportions of the utility
funds' cash balances to the total City cash. All other interest income is 1ecognized in the Fixed
Asset Acquisition Fund.

Inventory of Consumable Supplies

All funds, except the enterprise funds, account for materials and supplies inventories as
expenditures using the "purchase method", whereby inventories are recorded as expenditures
when they ate purchased. Enterprise funds account for inventories using the "consumption
method" which reclassifies inventories as expenditures when they are used. Enterprise Fund
inventories are valued at cost, on a first-in first-out basis as identified by a physical inventory
count at year-end

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased in all governmental funds are 1ecorded in the Governmental
Fund Financial Statements as expenditures at the time of purchase and capitalized at historical
cost in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds capitalize fixed assets at
historical cost. Interest costs incurred during the construction of capital assets are capitalized as
part of the cost of construction (if material). Donated assets are recorded at their estimated fair
market value on the date of donation.

Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful
life of an asset are capitalized. Public domain (infrastructure) fixed assets, consisting of
improvements such as curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, and bridges are valued at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. The capitalization threshold for all types of fixed
assets is $3,000. Depreciation is provided in an amount sufficient to allocate the cost of the
depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives on the straight-line basis. The
service lives by type are as follows:
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JUNE 30, 2014
Capital Assets (continued)

Buildings and other improvements 10-50 years
Wells and distribution systems 20-60 years
I'reatment and collection systems 10-50 yeats
Equipment 5-20 years
Streets 25 years
Sidewalks, curb & gutter,

storm drains, and traffic signals 50 years

Property Taxes

All real property in the City of Yerington is assigned a parcel number by the County
Assessor in accordance with state laws, with each parcel being subject to physical reappraisal
every five years. A factoring system is used to adjust the appraised value during the vears
between physical appraisals. The property and its improvements are assessed at 35% of "taxable
value" as defined by statute. The amount of tax levied is developed by multiplying the assessed
value by the City's tax rate. The maximum tax rate was established in the State Constitution at
$5.00 pet hundred dollats of assessed valuation; howevet, as a result of the 1979 legislature
session, the tax 1ate was further limited to $3.64 pet hundred dollars of assessed valuation unless
an additional 1ate is approved by the electorate.

Taxes on 1eal propeity ate a lien on the property and attached on July 1 of the year for
which taxes are levied

Taxes may be paid in four installments payable on the third Monday in August, and the
first Mondays in October, Januaty, and March to the Treasurer of Lyon County in which the City
of Yerington is located. Penalties are assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay an installment within ten
days of the installment due date. After a two-year waiting period, if the taxes remain unpaid, a
tax deed is issued conveying the property to the County with a lien for back taxes and
accumulated charges. Redemption may be made by the owner and such persons as described by
statute by paying all back taxes and accumulated penalties, interest and costs before sale.

T'axes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are
mailed out annually by the County and the tax is computed using percentages of taxable values

established by the Department of Taxation and tax rates described above.

The major classifications of personal property are commercial, mobile homes, airciaft and
agricultural.

Taxes Receivable, delinguent

Secured roll property taxes receivable reflect only those taxes receivable from the
delinquent roll years, No provision for uncollectible accounts has been established since
management does not anticipate any material collection loss in respect to the remaining balances.
Amounts not collected within 60 days after year-end have been recorded as deferred revenue.
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Long-Term Debt

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities column in the
statement of net assets.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, duting the curtent period. The face amount of the debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported
‘as other financing uses. Issuance cost, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Compensated Abgence Benefits

Governmental Fund Types:

The costs involved in vacation time and sick leave benefits are not accrued as earned but
are recorded as payroll costs only when the time is actually used or accumulated benefits are paid
or accrued as the result of a termination of services. The liability for accrued vacation and sick
leave benefits is recorded in the government-wide financial statements.

Enterprise Fund Types:

These costs are 1ecognized as expenses when the benefits are earned.

Net Position

Net Position represent the difference between assets and deferred outflow of resources,
and liabilities and deferred inflow of resources. Net positions comprise various net earnings
from operating and non-operating revenues and expenses, and contributions of capital. Net
positions are classified in the following three components: invested in capital assets, net of
related liabilities; restiicted for capital activity and debt service; and unrestricted net assets.
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consist of all capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction
and improvement of those assets; debt related to unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and
investments is excluded ftom that determination. Restricted for capital activity and debt service
consists of net assets for which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as
lenders, grantors, contributors, regulations and enabling legislation, including self-imposed
legal mandates, less any related liabilities. Unrestiicted consists of all other net position not
included in the above categories. The City applies restricted resources first when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Fund Balance

In the governmental fund financial statements, governmental funds repoit up to five
components of fund balance, as applicable. These five classifications are: nonspendable,
testriicted, committed, assigned, and unassigned Nonspendable fund balance is reserved for
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portions of net resources that cannot be spent because of their form, such as inventories or
prepaid items, or that cannot be spent because they must be kept intact Restricted fund balance
is reserved for the portion of net 1esources that have externally enforceable limitation on use,
such as those imposed by creditors, grantors, conftibutors, or laws enacted by external entities.
Committed fund balance is reserved for the portion of net resources that have had self-imposed
limitations set in place by formal action of the governing board Assigned fund balance is
reserved for the portion of net resources that have an intended use established by the governing
board or a designated official. Unassigned fund balance is for that portion of net resources that
does not meet the criteria to be placed in any of the other four components of fund balance.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity
of the proprietary funds. For the City, these revenues are charges for services for water and
sewer activities, Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or
services which is the primary activity of the fund. Revenues and expenses which do not meet
these criteria are considered non-operating and are reported as such.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

The City of Yerington has established a compensated absence fund to accumulate
resouices to pay the cost of accumulated leave due upon employee retitement. The City has-
suspended its annual contributions to the fund. The Compensated Absence Fund is required to
be reported within the General Fund in accordance with GAAP.

(Grant Revenue

Grant revenues received before the revenue recognition criteria established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board have been met are reported as defeired inflow of
resources.

Cost Allocations

A number of employees provide service to multiple departments and funds. The City
allocates the respective labor cost based on management's estimates established at the beginning
of each fiscal year. Public works employees are the primary group whose costs are allocated.
These employees serve the various enterprise funds as well as the public works departments
within the general fund The City also allocates administiative employee costs to enterprise
funds.
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Comparative Data

Comparative data shown for the prior year (2013) has been extracted from the 2012-2013
financial statements. It has been provided to add comparability, but is not considered full
disclosute of transactions for 2012-2013. Such information can only be obtained by referring to
that audit 1eport.

Note 2 - Cash and Investments:

The City of Yerington maintains all of its cash and investments in bank accounts, time
cettificates of deposits, and Wells Fargo Bank U S. Government Money Market Mutual Fund.
The City's cash balance is maintained at Wells Fargo Bank and at Financial Horizons Credit
Union, both of which are fully covered by FDIC insurance and collateral pledged to the City of
Yetington accounts. The collateral pledged consists of obligations insured o1 guaranteed by the
U.S. Government and its agencies.

Ihe following schedule summarizes cash and investments for the City of Yerington at
June 30, 2014: '

Cash and Investment Balance Held By:

General Activities:
General F'und $§ 523,678
Municipal Court Administrative Assessment Fund 0,246
Special Revenue Fund 50,765
Fixed Asset Acquisition Fund 183.839
Total General Activities Cash and Investments $ 767,528

Business Type Activities:

Water Utility Fund 2,082,576

Sewer Utility Fund 1,863,351

Mason Water Fund 087,119

Crystal Clear Water Fund 271,384
Total Business Type Activities Cash and Investments 5.204.430
Total Cash and Investments $ 5,971,958
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Note 2 - Cash and Investments (continued):

Cash Balances Classified By Depository:

Cash on Hand $ 300

Commercial Account:
Wells Fargo Bank 5,887,845
Financial Horizons Credit Union 82.741
Subtotal Cash 5,973,886

Investments:

Wells Fargo US Government Money Market Mutual Fund 1.072
Total Cash and Tnvestments $ 5,971,958

The following is a list of cash and deposits indicating collateral or insurance on these
deposits:

Carrying Bank
Amount Balance
Cash on Hand $ 300 $ -
Insured (FDIC) 331,741 331,741
Uninsured but collateralized by securities
held in the name of the City by its agent 5.641.845 _5.661.756

$5,973,886 $5,993.497

As of June 30, 2014, the City had the following investments held in an internal
investment pool.

Investment Maturities Fair Value
Wells Fargo Advantage —
U S. Government Money Market Mutual Fund 30 day average $ 1.072
Total Investment $ 1,072

The above investment is deposited in the Federated Master Repurchase Agreement Program.
The agreement with Wells Fargo requires that deposits be fully collateralized to the extent of
102% or greater.

Statute (NRS 355.172(3)) requires that securities underlying repurchase agreements must, at
the time of purchase, have a fair market value equal to or greater than the repurchase price of the
securities. The fair market value of the securities undetlying the above repurchase agreements
exceeded the repurchase price at the date of purchase as required. Note 1 includes a description
of investments authorized by NRS 355 170 and 355 167
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Interest Rate Risk:

The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment matuiities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising fiom increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk:

State law limits types of allowable investments under Nevada Revised Statutes 355.170
as listed in the accompanying Note 1. The Wells Fargo Advantage U.S. Government Money
Market Fund is rated AAAm by Standards and Poors

Concentration of Credit Risk:
The City places no limit on the amount that may invest in any one issuer.

Cash Restrictions:

As detailed in Note 4, the City is required to deposit an amount into a separate account
for debt service at least equal to one year’s annual loan installment. The Mason Water Fund and
the Crystal Clear Water Fund have restricted cash of $27,900 and $26,040, respectively.

The Crystal Clear Water System received grant financing totaling $2,760,986 through the
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection’s Board of Financing Water Projects for a line
extension and new water system. Under the Board for Financing Water Projects Policy, the
grantee must guaiantee that funds will be available in the future for the replacement of capital
improvement projects financed with grant funds based on the life of the projects. The City is
required to annually deposit into a cash reserve account $9,087 in the City Water Fund and
$13,957 in the Crystal Clear Water Fund to cover future capital costs. At June 30, 2014, cash
reserve balances were $40,513 and $62,228 for the City Water Fund and Crystal Clear Water
Fund, 1espectively

Cash received from customers as security deposits by the City's Water Utility Fund and
Sewer Utility Fund are restricted for future tefund or forfeit. The amounts at June 30, 2014 are
$6.685 and $2,176 respectively.
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Note 3 - Capital Assets:

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 _Additions Deletions  June 30, 2014
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and improvements $ 443599 § - $ - $ 443,599
Construction in progress 925,078 70318 - 995.396
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 1,368,677 70.318 - 1.438.995
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements 2,406,247 - - 2,406,247
Buildings and improvements 952,791 - - 952,791
Equipment and vehicles 1,434,751 26,109 - 1,460,860
Infrastructure 5.084.322 - - 5,084,322
Total capital assets
being depreciated 9.878.111 26,109 - 9.904,220
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 1,736,631 46,351 - 1,783,022
Buildings and improvements 544 227 37,847 - 582,074
Equipment and vehicles 909,947 71,089 - 981,036
Infrastiucture 3,742,022 84,632 - 3.826,654
Total accumulated
depreciation 6.932,827 239.959 - 7,172,786
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 2.945.284 (213.850) - 2,731,434
Governmental activities ' '
capital assets, net $4313.961 $(143,532) § - $ 4.170.429

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions of the City:

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Infiastructure

Total Depreciation Expense — Governmental Activities

$ 12,091

2,041
25,393
53,898
17,217

_ 129319

239,959
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Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2014

Business-type Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land and improvements $ 317,513 § - $ - $ 317,513
Construction in progress - 228563 - 228,563
317,513 - - 546,076

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings, wells, tanks and

distribution system 17,126,653 - - 17,126,653
Ireatment plant and collection

system 5,605,552 25,801 - 5,631,353
Vehicles 107,547 - - 107,547
Maintenance equipment 3,067,298 60,040 - 3,127,338
Office Equipment 127,926 - - 127,926

Total capital assets :
being depreciated 26,034,976 85,841 - 26.120.817

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings, wells, tanks and :
distribution system 3,277,642 388,341 - 3,665,983

Treatment plant and collection

system 2,717,012 122,020 - 2,839,032
Vehicles 84,588 14,197 - 98,785
Maintenance equipment 450,291 184,062 - 634,353
Office Equipment 95.869 6,287 - 102,156

Total accumulated depreciation _6.625.402 714.907 - 7.340.309
Lotal capital assets being

' depreciated, net 19,409,574 (629.066) - 18.780.508

Business-type activitics

capital assets, net $19.727.087 $(400,503) §$ - $19.326,584

Depreciation expense of $714,907 was charged to the public works - utilities function of
the City
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Note 4 — Enterprise Fund Obligations:

2014

The following long-term obligations of the enterprise funds are outstanding at June 30,

Water Utility Fund

The City obtained a 20 year, $567,332 general obligation note, dated May 14, 2012, from
the Nevada Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Bond Program for a water arsenic
treatment plant. Semi-annual payments of $20,163, including interest at a 1ate of 327%
per annum, are due each January 1 and July 1. The debt service payments are intended to be
paid from net revenues of the water systemn. However, the bond shall also be payable from
general taxes to the extent net water system revenues are unavailable.

The annual requirements on the Water Fund’s bonds payable as of June 30, 2014 ate as
follows:

Year Ended

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 23,806 $ 16,519 $ 40,325
2015 24,590 15,735 40,325
2016 25,401 14,924 40,325
2017 26,239 14,086 40,325
2018 27,104 13,221 40,325
2019-2023 149,525 52,100 201,625
2024-2028 175,852 25,773 201,625
2029-2032 58.562 1,925 60,487

$511.079  $154283 $ 665,362

Mason Water Utility Fund

The City obtained a forty-year, $516,664 loan, dated April 1, 2003, from the United
States Department of Agriculture - Rural Development for improvements to the water
system. Payments of $2,325, including interest at a rate of 4.5% per annum are due each
month until February 2032. The debt service payments are intended to be patd from net
revenues of the Mason Water Utility Fund. The bond conditions require the City to
deposit into a separate account an amount at least equal to one year’s annual loan
installment ($27,900).

The annual requirements on the Mason Water revenue bonds payable as of Tune 30, 2014
are as follows:
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Mason Water Utility Fund (continued)
Year Ended
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2015 § 12,560 $§ 15340 $ 27,900
2016 13,137 14,763 27,900
2017 13,740 14,160 27,900
2018 14,372 13,528 27,900
2019 15,032 12,868 27.900
2020-2024 86,174 53.326 139,500
2025-2029 107,872 31,628 139,500
2030-2031 83.717 6.388 80,105

$346.604 $162.001 $508.605

Crystal Clear Water Utility Fund

The City obtained a foity-year $500,000 loan, dated June 1, 2011, from the United States
Department of Agriculture - Rural Development for improvements to the water system.
Payments of $2,170, including interest at a 1ate of 425% per annum are due each month
until April 2050. The debt service payments are intended to be paid from net revenues of
the Crystal Clear Water Utility Fund. The bond conditions require the City to deposit into
a separate account an amount at least equal to one year’s annual loan installment

($26,040).

The annual requirements on the Crystal Clear Water revenue bonds payable as of June 30,

2014 are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044
2045-2049
2050

Principal Interest Total
$ 5,807 $ 20,233 $ 26,040
6,057 19,983 26,040
6,320 19,720 26,040
6,594 19,446 26,040
6,879 19,161 26,040
39,136 91,064 130,200
48,384 81,816 130,200
59,818 70,382 130,200
73,953 56,247 130,200
91,428 38,772 130,200
113,033 17,167 130,200
21,333 419 21,752
$478.742 $454.410 $933.152
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Changes in Business-Iype Activities Long-term Obligations:

Balance Balance
July 1, Obligations Obligations June 30, Due Within
2013 Issued Retired 2014 One Year

Long-Term Debt:

State Revolving bonds - water $§ 534,125 $ - $ 23,046 § 511,079 § 23,806
Mason Water revenue bonds 358,611 - 12,007 346,604 12,560
Curystal Clear revenue bonds 484,306 - 5,564 478,742 5,807
Compensated absences 31,437 - 2.827 28,610 -
OPEB liability 150,576 10,328 - 160,904 -

Total Long-Term

Obligations $1.559.055 § 10328 § 43,444 $1.525939  $42.173

Note § - General Long-Term Debt:
Governmental Activities:

The estimated value of the accrued compensated absences liability at June 30, 2014 was
$41,579. This balance includes the value of the general government's annual leave and sick leave,
which is earned at a rate based upon an employee's longevity with the City. An employee may
carry forward unused annual leave, not exceeding 30 days as of the employee's anniversary date, to
the next year. The City has adopted a sick leave payback policy based on several factors; ten years
of continuous service and employees' vesting in the PERS retirement system with amounts paid for
those employees in excess of 30 days upon retirement, not to exceed $1,000.

Changes in Governmental Activities Long-term Debt:
Balance Balance

July 1, Obligations Obligations June 30, Due Within
2013 Issued Retired 2014 One Year

Long-Term Debt:
Compensated absences $ 41579 § - $ 8526 § 33,03 §$§ -
OPEB liability 173,524 - 2.431 171.093 -

Total Long-Term
Obligations $215103 § - $ 10957 $204.146 § -

The lawful City general obligation debt limit at June 30, 2014 was $17,019,827 (NRS
266.600), which leaves a theoretically-available borrowing capacity of $16,508,748 arrived at by
deducting the $511,079 Nevada Revolving Fund Water bonds.
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Note 6 - Contracts and Agreements

The City has entered into several inter-local government agreements Briief descriptions of
the agreements are provided below.

Lyon County Ad Valorem Tax Agreement

In accordance with an agreement dated July 1, 2007, between the City and Lyon
County, $200,000 of the County's annual consolidated tax revenue shall be paid to the City
of Yerington in consideration for the City's previous surrender of ad valorem tax rate to the
County. The agreement was renewed July 1, 2010, and shall automatically renew on each
subsequent three year term thereafter unless terminated by either party upon 60 days notice.
The amount is reported as intergovernmental revenue in the General Fund

Fire Protection and Ambulance Service

Fire protection, emergency medical, and other related services are provided to the
City of Yerington by the Mason Valley Fire Protection District in accordance with an
agreement effective July 1, 1993. The fee for such service is determined each fiscal year
and based on the preceding year's fee adjusted by changes in the City's assessed valuation
and Mason Valley Fire Protection District's ad valorem tax rate. The amount paid for fiscal
year 2014 was $119,741 and is reported within the General Fund's public safety function.

County Parks Agreement

Paik and recreation facilities located within the City of Yerington were previously
provided jointly by Lyon County and the City. Effective April 16, 1992, the City agreed to
provide all the services, personnel and equipment which are necessary to operate and
maintain the parks and the County agrees to pay the City an amount agreed to by both
entities each year. The amount should equal, as nearly as possible, the percentage of
budgeted appropriation allocated by the County for parks that the assessed value of the
property in the City and Mason Valley Fire Protection District bears to the assessed value of
all property in the County. If no agreement is reached, then the amount will be the amount
provided in the previous fiscal year. The amount received in fiscal year 2014 was $40,000.

Water and Wastewater Agreements with Willowcreek General Improvement District

Effective January 1, 2005, the City of Yerington began overseeing daily operations
of the water and wastewater systems owned by the Willowcreek General Improvement
District.  In accordance with the agreement, The City bills and collects fees and is
responsible for most system repairs and maintenance. User fees are remitted to the District
monthly and the District compensates the City a fixed amount each six months, The City
received $19,000 and $29,000 for operating the water and sewer wastewater systems
1espectively. Compensation and costs associated with operating the District's utility systems
are included within the City's Water Utility Fund and Sewer Utility Fund.
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In addition to agreements with other local goveinments, the City has the following
agreements outstanding at June 30, 2014 with private companies

Nevada Copper Inc. - Water Service Agreement

The City of Yerington has entered into an agreement with Nevada Copper, Inc to
reserve 3,500 acre feet of water for future use m a proposed mining operation in exchange
for semi-annual payments of $43,750 until such time that Nevada Copper, Inc. begins using
the water. The agreement also specifies the future use fees to be charged. The agreement,
dated August 10, 2009, is for a period of thirty years and revenues are credited to the Water
Utility Fund.

Atlantic Richfield Co. - Water Line Extension

The City has agreed to provide water service to the Sunset Hills residential area with
costs to be paid by Atlantic Richfield Co. An advance payment was teceived in the amount
of $30,180 of which $19,080 had been spent as of June 30, 2014. The balance of $11,100 is
reported as a deferred inflow in the Water Utility Fund.

Note 7 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan;

The City contributes to the Public Employees” Retirement System of Nevada (PERS), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Retirement
Board of PERS.

PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Nevada Revised Statutes establish and amend
benefits provisions to be administered by the Retirement Board. The Public Employees
Retirement Board of the State of Nevada issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for PERS. That report may be
obtained fiom the Public Employees Retirement System, 693 West Nye Street, Carson City,
Nevada, 89703.

The City provides contributions for all employees covered under the employer contribution
plan of PERS. PERS’ basic funding policy provides for petiodic contributions at a level pattern
of cost as a percentage of salary throughout an employee’s working lifetime, in order to
accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Although, PERS receives an actuarial
valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution 1ates required to fund PERS on an
actuarial reserve basis, both for funding purposes and GASB disclosure puiposes, contributions
actually made are according to the required rates established by the Legislature. The following
schedule reflects information for the current and preceding two fiscal years.
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Note 7 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued):

Required Statutory Contributions as
Year Ending Contribution Rate Percent of
June 30 Regular Police/Fire  Contributions Covered Payroll
2012 23.75% 39.50% $254,178 29 1%
2013 23.75 39.50 248,439 291
2014 25.75 40.50 269,159 315

Note 8 — Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB):

The City offers post-employment health benefits to its retirees under two plans on the
pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, the City has implemented GASB No. 45 prospectively,
beginning with the year ended June 30, 2010. Actuarial studies are done periodically to
determine the OPEB liability. The most recent valuation was performed for Tune 30, 2013.

Plan Information

Nevada Public Employees' Benefits Program:

The City contributes to an agent multiple-employer defined healthcare plan, Nevada
Public Employees’ Benefits Program (PEBP). PEBP is administered by the State of Nevada
pursuant to NRS 287, City retirees previously had the option to join the PEBP offered by
the State of Nevada. Local Governments are required to pay the same portion of cost of
coverage for their retirees joining PEBP that the State of Nevada pays for those peisons
retired from state service As of June 30, 2014, 14 City retirees were covered by this benefit
plan. The PEBP issues a publicly available report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by wiiting to Public
Employees' Benefit Program, 901 South Stewart Street, Suite 1001, Carson City, Nevada
89701. The information is also available on their website at www.pebp.state.nv.us or by
calling (800)326-5496.

City of Yerington Health Care Plan:

The City administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan for eligible
employees, retitees and their dependents. The program provides health, vision, dental and
life insurance benefits. Any retiree eligible to receive benefits fiom the Nevada Public
Employees Retirement System is eligible to participate.

Funding Policy:

Nevada Public Employees' Benefits Progtam:

The contributions to Nevada Public Employees' Benefits Program are established
and may be amended by the Board of the Public Employee's Benefits Program The amount
of subsidy for City retirees is billed monthly. The explicit subsidy paid ditectly to PEPB by
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the City for the year ended Tune 30, 2014 was $42,998. Amounts contributed by 1etirees are
paid directly to the State of Nevada and, as such, are not available. The required
contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. The City has not
elected the option to pay additional amounts into a qualified trust to prefund benefits.

City of Yerington Health Care Plan:

The City pays the full cost of active employee coverage Employees pay the full cost
of any optional dependent coverage and tetirees pay the full cost of their personal and
dependent coverage. Claims expeiience of employees and retireces are pooled when
determining premiums and retiree and active employees pay the same rates Therefore, an
"implicit" subsidy of retirees cost by active employees could results A separate report is not
issued for the plan.

Annual OPEP Cost and OPEB Liability:

As of June 30, 2014, the effective date of the OPEB valuation, the number of retiree
participants in the PEBP and City plans were 14 and 2 respectively, with 21 active employees
participating in the City's plan. Because of the sun setting of the PEBP's enrollment, effective
November 29, 2008, the number of retirees patticipating in that plan will decrease.

The annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution to the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the Alternative
Measurement Method as described in GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each vear and to
amortized any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years. The City’s annual OPEB cost for the curtent year and the related information for both
plans is as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 80,931
Interest on Net OPEB obligations 9,724
Adjustments to annual required contributions _ (16,025)
Annual OPEB cost 74,630
Contributions made ' _ {66,733)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 7,897
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of the year 324.100
Net OPEB obligation, end of the year $ 331,997

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan
and the net OPLB obligations (assets) by the plan, for the fiscal year 2014 were as follows:

Annual OPEB Cost $ 74,630
Employer contributions _{66,733)
Net OPEB Contributions $ 7.897
Petcentage of annual OPEB cost contiibuted 89 4%
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Note 8— Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions: (continued)

Funding Status and Funding Progress

Actuarial accrued liability (a) $1,197,553
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (a) — (b) $1,197.553
Funding ratio (b)/(a) 0%
Covered payroll (c) $854,524
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a

Percentage of covered payroll (a) — (b)/(c) 140%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future  Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual 1evision and actual results are compared to past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding progress
presented as requited supplementary information will provide multi-year trend information that
will show, in future years, whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the
employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and
the pattein of sharing benefit costs between the City and the plan members to that point.
Projections of benefits for financial 1eported purposes do not explicitly incorporate the potential
effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the paftern of cost sharing between the
employer and plan members in the future Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective
and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculation.
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Note 8 —~ Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions: (continued)

Significant methods and assumptions are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date July 1, 2012
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit (Alternative
Measurement Method as described
in GASB 45)
Amortization method Level % Dollar
Amortization period (in years) 30
Asset valuation method No assets in trust
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of teturn n/a
Projected salary increases n/a
Healthcare trend (by fiscal year)
PPO HMO
2014 8.30% 7.90%
2015 7 93% 7.58%
2016 7.57% 7.26%
2017 7.20% 6.93%
2018 6.83% 6.61%
2019 6.47% 6.29%
2020 6 10% 5.97%
2021 5.73% 5.64%
2022 537% 5.32%
2023 and subsequent 500% 5.00%

Note 9- Fund Equity:

The net position of the City as of June 30, 2014, included $158,578 that was restricted by
conditions of grants, restricted revenues, and debt covenants. As previously desctibed in note 4, the
Mason and Crystal Clear Water Utility Funds had a total of $53,940 restricted under U.SD A.
Rural Development loans. In addition, $102,741 was restricted by the conditions of a Nevada
Division of Envitonmental Protection grant the City previously used to finance improvements in
the Water Utility Fund and Ciystal Clear Water Fund. '

At June 30, 2014, the governmental funds had $29,500 in nonspendable fund balance which
is represented by inventory. The City also had committed fund balances of $9,088 in the Municipal
Court Administrative Assessment Fund, $65,739 in the Special Revenue Fund, and $176,729 in the
Fixed Asset Acquisition Fund The General Fund had assigned fund balance of $219,509 and
$345,312 in unassigned fund balance.
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Note 10 - Business License Fees:

The following schedule summarizes all fees imposed by the City of Yerington, which are
subject to the provisions of NRS 354 5989. The City's basic business license fee did not increase
from the previous year The population index had no increase and the consumer price index
increased by 1.7%.

FY 2014 FY 2014 Over
Adjusted Percent Maximum Actual (Under)
Base Increase Allowed Revenue Allowable
6-30-13 CPI Index Revenue Received Amount

Business Licenses $120975 X 1.7% =$123.032 $ 94875 § (28.157)

Note 11 - Regional Highways and Street Revenues:

The City participates in the optional nine-cent ($.09) gasoline tax to fund Lyon County’s
Regional Highway and Street Fund. The Fund is administered by a Regional Transportation
Commission composed of a five-member board of which the City has one representative. The
revenues derived from this fund are remitted to Lyon County for proper accounting. The City
receives an allocation on the nine-cent tax revenue based on its total assessed valuation compared
with the total assessed valuation of the County. Nevada Revised Statutes 373.150 requires any
funds not disbursed currently in aid of an approved project shall remain in the fund to the credit of
the City. At June 30, 2014 there were funds in the amount of $225,030 reserved in Lyon County's
Regional Highway and Street Fund for the sole use by the City of Yeiington. The Regional
Transportation Commission must first approve a project plan before any funds will be released to
the City. The City recognizes these revenues only upon meeting the revenue recognition critetia as
stated in Note 1. In addition, the Lyon County holds Road Construction Tax for the benefit of the
City All construction taxes had been paid as of yearend.

Note 12 - Contingencies:

Federal and State Grants

The City received grants from the Federal government, passed through State agencies.
These grants may be subject to compliance audits by the grantor agencies and ultimate retention of
these monies is contingent upon satisfying the grantors that proper procedures were followed and
that the resources were spent in accordance with grant requirements.

Claims and Lawsuils

Lawsuits are occasionally filed against the City of Yerington. The financial impact of these
actions, if any, is not determinable at June 30, 2014. However, the City believes it has adequate
insurance to cover any potential judgments.
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Note 13 - Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Ihe following schedule details interest paid by the City’s Utility Funds dwing the year:

Water Sewel Mason Crystal

Utility Utility Water Clear

Fund Fund Fund Watet
Interest paid $17279 § - $15.892 § 20476

Note 14 - Risk Management:

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters as are all
entities. The City has joined together with similar public entities (cities, counties, school districts,
and special districts) throughout the State of Nevada to create a pool under the Nevada Interlocal
Cooperation Act. The Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (Pool) is a public-entity 1isk pool
currently operating as a common-risk management and insurance program for 106 members.

Lhe City pays an annual premium and specific deductibles, as necessary, to the Pool for its
general insurance coverage. [he Pool is considered a self-sustaining tisk pool that will provide
propeity loss coverage for its members up to $200,000 per insured event. The Pool obtains
independent coverage for insured events in excess of the $200,000 limit. The Pool also is
considered a self-sustaining risk pool that will provide coverage for its members up to $500,000 per
casualty insured event. The Pool obtains independent coverage for insured events in excess of the
$500,000 limit.

The City has joined together with similar public entities (cities, counties, school districts,
and special districts) throughout the State of Nevada to create a pool under the Public Agency
Compensation Trust. The Pool is considered a public-entity risk pool currently operating as a
common-tisk management and insurance program providing workman’s compensation benefits for
its 76 members.

The City continues to catry commercial insurance for other risks of loss such as employee
health and accident insurance. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Note 15 - Subsequent Event:

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 5, 2014, which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

On July 15, 2014, the City of Yerington signed an agreement with Atlantic Richfield
Company to supply water to the Sunset Hills subdivision which lies approximately five miles
northwest of the City. The agreement specifies that Atlantic Richfield Company will bear all cost
associated with supplying water to said area. The estimated cost of said project is $6,071,454. As
part of that agreement, in addition to paying all engineering and construction costs, Atlantic
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Richfield Company will pay the City of Yerington $709,400 in privilege to connect fees. The
estimated completion date of the projected is estimated for summer of 2015.

Note 16 - Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes:

The City conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administiation
during the year as detailed in the Independent Accountant’s Report on Nevada Revised Statutes
Chapter 354 Compliance Examination Report found on page 90 with the following exceptions:

Nevada Revised Statutes 354 626 prohibits actual expenditures from exceeding
the sum of budgeted operating and non-operating expenses Ilhere was an
apparent violation of this requirement in the City Water Utility Fund.
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Schedule of OPEB Funding Progress

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL asa

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage

Valuation Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Plan Name Date Plan Assets (AAL) __(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Public Employees
Benefit Plan 06/30/2011 - $2,787,462 52,787,462 - $ 1,139,071 244.7%
Public Employees
Benefit Plan 06/30/2012 - $2,787462  $2,787462 - $1,120,513 248 8%
Public Employees
Benefit Plan/City
of Yerington Plan 06/30/2013 - $ 1,197,553 $ 1,197,553 - $ 958,150 1250%
Public Employees
Benefit Plan/City
of Yerington Plan 06/30/2014 - $1.,197,553 $1,197,553 - § 905997 132 2%

Public Employees
Benefit Plan

Public Employees
Benefit Plan

Public Employees
Benefit Plan/City
of Yerington Plan

Public Employees
Benefit Plan/City
of Yerington Plan

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Annual
Ended Required Actual Percentage
June 30, Contribution  Contribution  Contributed
2011 $ 142214 $ 34,606 24.3%
2012 $ 142214 $ 38,993 27.4%
2013 $ 80,901 3 63,734 78 8%
2014 3 80,901 $ 63,733 78 8%
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
FIXED ASSET ACQUISITION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Compar ative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Revenues
Taxes
County capital project tax 3 - 3 - 3 656 $ 656 3 1,153
Intergovernmental
USDA Grant - - 1,846 1,846 11,900
LEPC Grant - - 3,850 _ 3,850 4,669
Total Intergovernmental - - 5,696 5,696 16,569
Other Local Revenues
Interest income 65 65 132 67 204
Total Revenues 65 65 6,484 6,419 17,926
Expenditures
General Government
Capital Outlay, computer 40,000 40,000 9,160 30,840 -
40,000 40,000 9,160 30,840 -
Public Safety
Capital QOutlay, vehicle - - 26,109 (26,109) -
Capital Outlay, radios - - _ 1,846 (1,846) 23,448
- - 27,955 (27,955) 23,448
Public Works
Capital Outlay, mower - - - - 4,500
Total Expenditures 40,000 40,000 37,115 2,885 27,948
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (39,935) (39,935) (30,631 9,304 (10,022)
Fund Balance, July 1 177,507 177,507 207,360 29,853 217,382
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 137,572 h) 137,572 5 176,729 3 39,157 $ 207360
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2014 2013
Current Assets
Unrestricted
Cash A 2,035,378 b 1,912,694
Accounts receivable, net of
allowance for doubtful accounts 112,347 96,751
Reservation fee receivable 43,750 -
Inventory of materials and supplies 10,828 11,641
Restricted Cash
Customer deposits 6,685 6,355
AB 198 capital reserve 40,513 31,426
Total Curvent Assets 2,249,501 2,058,867
Property, Plant And Equipment
Land 1,493 1,493
Construction in progress 228,563 -
Building, wells, tanks and
distribution system 9,319,306 9,319,806
Vehicles 45,693 45,693
Maintenance equipment 2,703,921 2,703,921
Office equipment 66,624 66,624
12,366,100 12,137,537
Accumulated depreciation (2,838,078) (2,458,099)
Total Capital Assets 9,528,022 9,679,438

Total Assets 11,777,523 11,738,305




Liabilities

Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other governments
Current portion of bonds payable

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits

Total Current Ligbilities
Long-term liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued OPEB payabie
State Revolving Fund loan
Total Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Defeived Inflow of Resources
Unearned system development grant

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for AB 198 capital reserves
Unrestricted

Total Net Position
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2014

2013

113,657
10,254
11,070
23,806

6,685

29,169
177
6,471

23,046

6,355

165,472

72,218

13,500
77,305
487,273

15,111
72,375
511,079

578,078

598,565

743,550

670,783

11,100

26,985

9,064,555
40,513
1,917,805

9,168,359
31,426
1,840,752

11,022,873

$

11,040,537
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
WATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Operating Revenues
Water use fees $ 739,811 3% 739,811 b 706,590 % (33.221) % 687,924
Meter replacement / Other charges 25,000 25,000 15,089 (9,911) 15,367
Total Operating Revenues 764,811 764,811 721,679 {43,132) 703,291
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 244,605 244,605 237,813 6,792 228,407
Employee benefits 130,779 130,779 122,928 7,851 114,003
Services and supplies 263,387 263,387 241,253 22,134 218,331
Depreciation 310,000 310,000 379,979 (69,979) 381,341
Total Operating Expenses 948,771 948,771 981,973 {33,202) 942,082
Operating Income (Loss) (183,960) (183,960) (260,294) (76,334) (238,791)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 340 340 187 (153) 691
Late fees 500 500 2,373 1,873 -
Administrative fee 8,000 9,000 8,279 (721) 10,274
Willow Creck agreement 19,000 19,000 19,000 - 19,000
Water tank lease 11,200 11,200 12,415 1,215 10,630
Water rights revenue 36,000 36,000 15,250 (20,750) 3,466
Nevada Coppei reservation fee 87,500 87,500 87,500 - 87,500
ARCO, system extension - - 15,885 15,885 3,195
Sunset Hills, system extension - - - - (3,195)
Insurance recovery - POOL/PACT - - 27,520 27,520 -
Corp of Engineers grant - - - - 21,600
GIS Asset Management - - - - (28,800)
CDBG- Utility master plan - - - - 59,100
CDBG- Utility master plan expenses - - - - (59,100)
Miscellaneous income 12,000 12,000 677 {11,323) 3,608
Interest expense (17,279} (17,279) (17,279) - {18,015)
Total Nonoperating
Revenues {(expenses) 158,261 158,261 171,807 13,546 109,954
Income (loss) before _
contributions (25,699) (25,699} (88,487) (62,788) (128,837)
Capital contributions 165,800 165,800 70,823 (94,977) 14,100
Change in Net Position 3 140,101 § 140,101 (17,664) $ (157,765) (114,737)
Net Position, July 1 11,040,537 11,155,274
Net Position, June 30 $ 11,022,873 § 11,040,537

61-



CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
WATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2014
{With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers 3 764,811 $ 764,811 ) 761,201 $ 3,610 § 754,643
Payments to Lyan County - - (55,119 (53,119) (60,898)
Payments of personnet costs (375,384) (375,384) (354,345) 21,039 (342,557)
Payments for service and supplies (263,387) (263.387) (246,730) 16,607 (231,362)
Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities 126,040 126,040 104,957 {21,083) 119,826
Cash Flows From Nencapital
Financing Activities .
‘Water tank lease income 11,200 11,200 12,415 1,215 10,630
Water right revenue 36,000 36,000 15,250 (20,750) 3,466
Willowereek revenue 19,000 19,000 19,000 - 19,000
Nevada Copper reservation fee 87,500 87,500 43,750 (43,7300 87,500
Administrative fees 9,000 9,000 8,279 (721) 10,274
ARCO, system extension - - - - 30,180
Sunset Hills, system extension - - - - (3,195)
Corp of Engineers, GIS management - - - - 21,600
GIS asset management - - - - (28,800)
CDBG - Utility master plan - - - - 58,100
CDBG - Utility master plan expenses - - - - 10,920y
Insurance recovery - POOL/PACT - - 27,520 27.520 -
Miscellaneous income 12,000 12,000 3,030 (8,930} 3,608
Net Cash Provided Non-Capital
Financing Activities 174,700 174,700 129,264 (45,436) 202,443
Cash Flows From Capital And
Related Financing Activities
Capital contributions by customers 129,800 129,300 70,823 (58.977) 14,100
Capital contributions by grantors - - - - -
Acquisition of capital assets (200,000 (200,000} (132,805) 67,195 -
Principal paid on long-term debt {23,046) (23,046) (23,046) - (22,310)
Interest paid on long-term debt (17.279) (17,279) (17,279) - (18,015)
Net Cash (Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities (110,525) (110,525) (102,307} 8,218 (26,225)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest income 340 340 187 {133) 691
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and
Cash Equivalents 190,555 190,555 132,101 (58,454} 296,735
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 1,868,771 1,868,771 1,950,475 81,704 1,653,740
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 b 2,059,326 § 2,059,326 h) 2,082,576 5 23,250 § 1,950475
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Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss}

Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in inventory
Increase {decrease) in consumer deposits
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities

Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
§  (183.960) § (183960) §  (260294) $  (76334) $ (238,791
310,000 310,000 379,979 69,979 381,341
- - (15,596) (15,596) (4,301)
- - 813 813 1,183
- . 330 330 {448)
- - (275) (275) (19,160)
$ 126040 § 126040 § 104957 $  (21,083) § 119,826
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2014 2013
Current Assets
Unrestricted
Cash b 1,861,175 3 1,698,446
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of 3420 and $420 respectively 78,460 16,782
Inventory of materials and supplies 793 408
Restricted Cash
Customer deposits 2,176 2,035
Total Current Assets 1,942 604 1,777,671
Property, Plant And Equipment
Land 10,120 10,120
Treatment plant and collection systems 5,631,353 5,605,552
Vehicles 42,499 42 499
Maintenance equipment 358,532 327,532
Office equipment 45,080 45,080
6,087,584 6,030,783
Accumulated depreciation (3,096,693) {2,950,715)
Total Capital Assets 2,990,891 3,080,068

Total Assets 4,933,495 4,857,739




Liabilities

Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets:

Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other governments
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits

Total Current Liabilities
Long-term liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences
Accrued OPEB payable

Total Liabilities
Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Position
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2014

2013

$ 7,448
8,267
7,234

2,176

14,692
6,455
4,175

2,035

25,125

27,357

11,959
68,286

13,030
63,945

80,245

76,975

105,370

104,332

2,990,891
1,837,234

3,080,068
1,673,339

3 4,828,125

3

4,753,407
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
SEWER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGET AMOUNT

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Operating Revenues
Sewer use fees $ 665062 $§ 665,062 3 625394 % (39,668) §$ 623,151
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 220,048 220,048 212,607 7,441 201,118
Employee benefits - 119,309 119,309 110,989 8,320 101,916
Savkesandsuppﬁes 211,735 211,735 152,330 59,405 136,158
Depreciation 166,000 166,000 145,978 20,022 163,342
Total Operating Expenses 71.'7,092 717,092 621,904 95,188 602,534
Operating Income (Loss} (52,030) (52,030) 3,490 55,520 20,617
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 330 330 313 a7 605
Late fees 2,300 2,300 2,935 635 3,071
Miscellaneous 300 300 (300) 73
Willowcreek agreement 29,000 29,000 29,000 - 29,000
Total Nonoperating Revenues
{Expenses) 31,930 31,930 32,248 318 32,749
Income {Loss) before
contributions (20,100) (20,100} 35,738 55,838 53,366
Capital contributions 121,600 121,600 38,980 (82,620) 26,510
Change in Net Position $ 101,500 $ 101,500 74,718 3 {26,782) 79,876
Net Position, Tulyl ) 4,753,407 4,673,531
Net Position, June 30 $ 4,828,125 $ 4,753,407
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BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 665,062 % 639,281 3§ 661,856 § 22,575 § 653,243
Payments to Lyon County - - (38,138) (38,138) (39,912)
Payments of personnel costs (339,357) (325,858) (318,514) 7,344 (302,988)
Payments for service and supplies (211,733) (215,193} (156,741) 38,452 (129,343)
Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities 113,970 98,230 148,443 50,213 181,000
Cash Flows From Nencapital
Financing Activities
Miscellaneous mcome 2,300 2,300 2.935 635 3,144
Willowcreek agreement 29,000 29,000 29,000 - 29,000
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital
Financing Activities 31,300 31,300 31,935 635 32,144
Cash Flows From Capital And
Related Financing Activities
Capital contributions by customers 121,600 121,600 38,980 (82,620) 26,510
Acquisition of capital assets {155,800) (5,800 {56,801) (51,001} -
Net Cash (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities (34.200) 115,800 {17,821) (133,621) 26,510
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest income 330 330 313 (17) 605
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents 11,400 245,660 162,870 (82,790} 240,259
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 1,615,395 1,503,052 1,700,481 197,429 1,460,222
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 by 1,726,795 § 1,748,712 % 1,863,351 % 114,639 § 1,700,481
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SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in inventory
Increase (decrease) in consumer deposits
(Decreasc) increase in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities

Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities

BUDGEIED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACIUAL VARIANCE 2013
$  (52,030) $§  (52,030) $ 3,490 § 55520 § 20,617
166,000 166,000 145,978 (20,022) 163,342
] . (1,678) (1,678) (7.247)
- - (385) (385) 148
- . 141 141 (141)
- - 897 897 4,281
$ 113,970 $ 113970 $ 148443 $ 34,473 $ 181,000
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
MASON WATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2013)

2014 2013
Current Assets
Unrestricted
Cash ) 959,219 $ 876,343
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $460 and $460 respectively 30,622 30,934
Restricted Cash
USDA loan reserve 27,900 27,900
Total Current Assets 1,017,741 935,177
Property, Plant And Equipment
Land 10,000 10,000
Building, wells, tanks and distribution 4,640,227 4,640,227
Vehicles 19,355 19,355
Maintenance Equipment 64,885 35,845
Office Equipment 16,222 16,222
4,750,689 4,721,649
Accumulated depreciation (985,167) (§90,155)
Total Capital Assets 3,765,522 3,831,494

Total Assets 4,783,263 4,766,671




Liabhilities
Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Accrued interest
Current portion of bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued OPEB payable

Bonds payable, due after one year

Total Long-Teim Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for USDA loan reserve
Unrestricted

Total Net Position
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2014

1,271
647
1,282
12,560

2013

6,325
1,398
1,326
12,909

15,760

21,958

3,040
13,776
334,044

2,896
12,820
345,702

350,860

361,418

366,620

383,376

3,418,918
27,900
969,825

3,472,883
27,900
882,512

4,416,643

$

4,383,295
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
MASON WATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEUDLE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Operating Revenues
Water use fees $ 288444 § 288444 3§ 270,717 § 17,727y 8 267,907
Water meter replacement / Other Charges 6,900 6,900 7,241 341 7,208
Total Operating Revenues 293,344 293,344 277,958 (17,386) 275,115
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 49,260 49,260 47,536 1,724 42,161
Employee benefits 31,617 31,617 27,876 3,741 22,264
Services and supplies 99,816 99,816 61,235 38,581 73,030
Depreciation 92,000 92,000 95,012 (3,012) 93,341
Total Operating Expenses 272,693 272,693 231,659 41,034 230,796
Operating Income 22,651 22,651 46,299 23,648 44,319
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 110 110 167 57 327
Administrative fees/ Other Income 3,400 3,400 2,730 (670) 3,737
Water right revenue 1,000 1,000 - (1,000) -
Interest expense (14,951) (14,951) (15,848) (897) {16,423)
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses) (10,441 (10,441) (12,951) {2,510) (12,359)
Income (Loss) before
contributions 12,210 12,210 33,348 21,138 31,960
Capital contributions 3.500 3,900 - (3,900) 4,900
Change in Net Position $ 16,110 & 16,110 33,348 § 17,238 36,860
Net Position, July 1 4,383,295 4,346,435
Net Position, June 30 $ 4416,643 $ 4383295
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MASON WATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNI
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 295,344 282425 § 278270 § (4,155) § 279,147
Payments of personnel costs (80,877) (66,149) (75,063} (8,914) (64,378)
Payments for service and supplies (99,816} (100,938) {66,289) 34,649 (70,873)
Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities 114.651 115,338 136,918 21,580 143,896
Cash Flows From Noncapital
Financing Activities
Water right revenues 1,000 1,000 - (1,000) -
Administration fees 3,400 3,000 2,730 {270) 3,737
Net Cash Provided (Used) Non-Capital
Financing Activities 4,400 4,000 2,730 (1,270) 3,737
Cash Flows From Capital And
Related Financing Activities
Capital contributions by customers 3,500 3,900 - (3,900} 4,900
Acquisition of capital assets (20,000) - (29,040} (29,040} (21,388)
Principal paid on long-term debt (22,949) {21,696) (12,007} 9,689 (11,480}
Interest paid on long-term debt (14,951) 16,381 (15,892) (32,273) (16,420)
Net Cash {Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities (54,000) (1,415) (56,939 (55,524) (44,388)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest income 110 223 167 (56) 327
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and
Cash Equivalents 65,161 118,146 82,876 (35,270) 103,572
Cash And Cash Equivalents, July 1 875,363 828,052 904,243 76,191 800,671
Cash And Cash Equivalents, June 30 5 940,524  § 946,168 § 987,119 § 40,921  § 904,243
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
MASON WATER UTILITY FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASHFLOWS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013}

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
{Decrease) increase in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities

Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013

$ 22,651 § 22,651 § 46299 $ 23,648 § 44319

92,000 92,000 95,012 3,012 93,341

. . 312 312 4,032

- - {4,705) (4,705) 2,204

$ 114651 $ 114651 $ 136918 S 22267 $ 143,89
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
CRYSTAL CLEAR WATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2013)

2013

160,038
6,632

47,911
26,040

240,621

295,900
3,166,620

3,462,520
(326,433)

2014
Current Assets
Unrestricted
Cash b 183,116
Accounts receivable 8,831
Restricted Cash
AB 198 capital reserve 62,228
USDA loan reserve 26,040
Total Current Assets 280,215
Property, Plant And Equipment
Land & water rights 295,900
Building, wells, tanks and distribution 3,166,620
3,462,520
Accumulated depreciation (420,371)
Total Capital Assets 3,042,149

3,136,087

Total Assets 3,322,364

3,376,708




Liabilifies
Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets:
Accounts payable
Accirued wages and benefits
Accrued interest
Current portion of bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued OPEB payable
Bonds payable, due after one year
Total Long-term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for reserves

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

72

2014

2013

170
57
279
5,807

357
69
282
5,565

6,313

6,273

111
1,537
472,935

400
1,436
478,741

474,583

480,577

480,896

486,850

2,563,407
88,268
139,793

2,651,781
73,951
164,126

2,841,468

$

2,889,858
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
CRYSTAL CLEAR WATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Operating Revenues
Water use fees $ 60,893 § 60,893 $ 63,380 % 2487 8 59,054
Water meter replacement/Other Charges 1,200 1,200 1,388 188 1,247
Total Operating Revenues 62,093 62,093 64,768 2,675 60,301
Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages 1,816 1,816 1,306 510 6,360
Employee benefits 856 856 901 (45) 3,189
Services and supplies 3,557 3,557 1,706 1,851 3,485
Depreciation 93,000 53,000 93,938 _ (938) 93,938
Total Operating Expenses 99,229 99,229 97,851 1,378 106,972
Operating Income (loss) (37,136) (37,136) (33,083) 4,053 (46,671)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 25 25 36 11 81
Administrative fees/ Other Income 700 700 930 230 990
Interest expense (20,475) (20,475) (20,473) 2 (20,761)
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses) (19,750) (19,7500 (19,507) 243 (19,690}
Income (Loss) before contributions
and transfers (56,886) (56,886) (52,590) 4,296 (66,361)
Capital contributions - - 4,200 4,200 -
Change in Net Position 3 (56,886) $ (56,336) (48,390) § 8,496 (66,361)
Net Position, July 1 2,889,858 2,956,219
Net Position, June 30 $ 2,841,468 $ 2,889,858
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
CRYSTAL CLEAR WATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMOUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers s 62,093 3 62,093 § 62,569 $ 476 3 61,015
Payments of personnel costs (2,672} (2,672) (2,407) 265 (9,740)
Payments for service and supplies {3,557} {3,557} {1,893) 1,664 (7,040)
Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities 55,864 55,864 58,269 2,405 44,235
Cash Flows From Noncapital
Financing Activities
Administration fees 700 700 930 230 590
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Non-Capital Financing Activities 700 700 930 230 990
Cash Flows From Capital And
Related Financing Activities
Contributions from customers - - 4,200 4,200 -
Principal paid on long-term debt (5,565) (5,565) (5,564) 1 (5,333)
Interest paid on long-term debt (20,475) (20.,475) (20,476) {1 {20,707}
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
and Reiated Financing Aciiviiies {26,040} {26,040y {21,840} 4,200 {26,040}
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest income . 25 25 36 11 81
Net Increase In Cash and
Cash Equivalents 30,549 30,549 37,395 6,846 19,266
Cash And Cash Equivalents, July 1 236,312 236,312 233,989 (2,323) 214,723
Cash And Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 266,861 $ 266861 § 271384 § 4,523 § 233,989
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
CRYSTAL CLEAR WATER UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(With Compar ative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2013)

BUDGETED AMQUNT
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE 2013
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) ¥ (37,136) 8 (37,136) $ (33,083 % 4,033  §  (46,671)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 94,000 94,000 93,938 {62) 93,938
Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable - - (2,199) (2,199) 714
{Decrease) increase in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities - - (387) {387) (3,746)
Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities 3 56,864 $ 56,864 % 58,269 % 1,405 3 44,235

-75-



I@hl

PT10TLYT 9T S6 7661
605°965°8T 19€T 96-S661
SOP°80T°SE 19€¢ L679661
L81°E8F'9E 8LST 86-L661
TrL0669¢ rret 6678661
66L° 1S6°LE 9€TE 006661
TFToL1°8E LOYE 10-0002
£80°96L'1¥ rariid T0-1002
STIE08'1Y PrOf £0-T00T
SANAS MY az\id #0-£00C
POT'STH ¥ vy 07002
£60°LT9°TY agid 90-$00T
91E'BLETS Oy _ L0~900C
159°866°LS rad\id 80-L00T
7E€L'TS8T9 vy 60-8002
1L9°0LY P9 FrOF 01-600C
€ELLS88S FrOF 11-010T
169°959°SS ax\id TI1-1102
€07 LY9°ES raq\a £1-210¢
GSLTEL'9S § iaatid $ #1-€10T
NOILVNTVA d9SSASSY JIVI XV.L AVAA TVOSI
ALID
paypneu()
SIB3 ) AJUam], I1se]

SUOTIENIE A PISSASSY pue sajey Xe], Aladoid Jo anpayos
VAVAAN ‘NOLONIMIA 40 ALID




[NNI

'spun spafold [ende)) pue ‘spun, AnuAY [e10adg ‘pun,] [EIOUAL) U] JO SANTIASI SSPN[OUL 3[NPayYag SIYL (1)

TEO'ILLT - LE6'SY 885°661 TLO'880°T TLYIST £96°591 c00Z
785°€98°1 STT'STT TT0°0L 71570t 68£°€88 0rS°L6T 768781 9002
96T°€18°1 - 8ESLLL SSIP1T £€8°076 L6L'E8T £L6°91T L0OT
08L°L60°C - 901°L9 TEL'ELT P99°81T°1 £S€T6E §79°5TT 800T
9.8°L€8°T - STHES £80°581 EIS'LYOT 8V C6T LI6°LST 600T
9T1sLTT - 6V 1Yy TLLPOT 850°T6Y'T 8TF 16T 629°SHT 010z
976°986°1 - TIS'LS 9%S°LOT 0IFETTT LEVY8T 120°+TT 110T
SrP'e08°C 6L0°9 66'7E $99°91¢ LLTV86'T 0L6°L8T WOP'ELT 710t
TOETLLT - 0vT'6E LT9°LOT PP 0E6 £5¥°50¢ 185687 €107
0LVLOLT - $ 1870 $ LE0°68I $ te6ors $ 6LT'EES $ €£0's6T $ r10T
s[e10], S90IN0Y SanUaAFY SADTAIRG SANUIADY SHULId ] sa%e ] 0¢ sunf sulpuyg
Buroueury 1310 10/ sod1eyD [CJUSUILLISAOBIO]  PUEB SASUIDI Jea X [eOSI]
BYIO
(paupneuy))

STBS A UQJ, 1SB]
(p 27008 Aq 590IM0S FUISUBLL{ JOYI() PU SINUIATY [RIUSUIEIIAOL)

VAVAAN ‘NOLONTIZA 40 ALID




‘spuny] spaloiy [ede,) pue ‘spun, SNUSAY [eivadg ‘pun,] [RISUSD) SU) JO saIm)1puadxa sapujoul 9[npayds sty ()

lmhi

£86°869°T 0LETT TS9'I1 LOL'SY SO+*8TS £6L°919 99%°Th 065 Th 00T
TSS0SLT TLS'9E 9ILS1 60779 0LL°6TL 05€£°809 €85°1¢S TSLPPT 900T
861°100°C L69°98 LLELT 979°L8 $S8'EEL vL86LY LTTOY ThSUSSE L00T
96£°0€0°T LLETY £9.°81 $€5'69 581806 7¥5°699 #S1°1Y 8€5°19¢ 800C
TOL'0T8 €16°19 SOS'11 STY'TS TLY'6E9 9ETIL 70Z°0S 6T6°THC 600T
61L°18€°T 5S9°6 1S6°pT 699°8S L8YLTOT LOT'E8S VAT Xl 916°L6T 0102
9££950°C - IS¢l 9t0°6S 910006 166°16L 8C6'8Y LT8TVT 1102
T0S'E6LT - 129°€1 y0O1°8S 8IL°LSYT 768°98L SYO°Th 0T1°5€T [4{\I4
£6L°TE9°L - 788°01 70675 TSLYES 66L°8TL ¥S0°1S T0+°T5T €102
LTE6ES T - 0S6°%1 $ TISby $ 9THPE § TS866L $ TiLL'6Y § $80°98¢C ¥10T
S[10], ADNAIRG iresy UoneaIday SI0 A\ Kjopeq [erpnf WAUILIBAOD) ()€ Qunf JuIpuy
1921 pue 2Imny) a1[Qng QR [RIDUILY) Tea X 1edst]
(poatpneup))

STB2 X US] ISE]
(pp FOnoUN,] AQ samypuadxy] [BIUSUILIDAOLD)

VAVAAN ‘NOIONIIHA 40 ALID




Im NI

(pappneun)
sieag ) Ua] 1sE
NOILISOd 13N

VAVA3N ‘NOLONIY3A 40 ALID




loml

Siea )
¥L0Z €loe fA%174 L1oZ 0L0¢ <] 3

0%

000'00L$

000'002%

000'00€4

000'00¥$

000'005%

000°'009%

000°00.$

000'008$

000'006%

{(paupneun)
SUVIA N3JL 1SV - ADNYIVE N4
SANNA TVANIWNHIAOD 1TV

VAVAIN ‘NOLONIMIA 40 ALID




I_\ml

siea)

vioz gLz zioz Lo oLoe 6002 8002 L002 900¢ 5002

0%

- 000°001$

* 000'002%

- 000D'00E%

- 000°00F%

- D00'00SS

- 000'009%

(paypneUN)
SHVY3A NIL 1SV - AONVY1VE ANNA
aNN4d TVYH3INTD

VAVAIN ‘NOLONINIA 40 ALID




|Nwi

anueleg pundn
sosuadxym

5anUaAsN B

EICEIN

0iLoe 600¢

i 0%

000'002%

000'00¥$

000'009$

000'008%

000°000° L%

000°002°1$

000°00%'1$

000'009't$

000°'008'1$

000'000°2%

(paypneUN)

SHVY3IA NIAL LSV - AONYIvd ANN4 ANY ‘STHNLIANIAXT 'SINNIAIYH

aONN4 TVH3IN3TO

VAVAIN ‘NOLONIYIA 40 ALID




lmwl

%08
$ONUBASI TEIUSWILIBAOBIBIY|

%22
s)iiad pue asuaoi

%el
seoInas 1oy sebieyn

%l %0
saxe )| sanuaAal 130 U

SHaMO0} PUE SaUI4

(panpneun)
¥102 '0€ INNr A3ANT ¥v3IA IHL HO4
F0dN0OS A9 SANN3IATAH
ANN4 TVHINIO
VAVAIN ‘NOLONIMIA 40 ALID




I.—ﬂml

%28

&lﬁﬁmw dlland

%61
S3I0M 2and

%91 ;

JUBLUUIBADL) |BISUSE)

%1

%E
*HEsH uoneaIoaY '@ 2IN)ND

(peypneun)
#7102 ‘0€ INNI A3IANT Yv3IA IHL HOA
NOILONMNA A9 S3HN.LIAN3IdX3
aNN4 TYHIN3TO

VAVvA3IN ‘NOLONIMZA 40 ALID



Imml

%12
sljouag aafoldwsy

%¥E
soliees

\

%0
Aeino |enden

%S
saiddng g seaneg

(paupneun)

7102 '0€ INNI d3AN3 HV3A IHL HO4
133rdo A9 S3HNLIANddX3
ONNd TVH3INGD
VAVA3IN ‘NOLONIYIA 40 ALID




Sciarani & Co.

Certified Public Accountants
APROTESSIONAL CORPORATION

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

T'o the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Yerington, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Yerington,
Nevada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City of Yerington’s basic financial statements and have issued our

report thereon dated November 5, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Yerington,
Nevada’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriated in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effgctiveness of City of
Yerington, Nevada’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Yerington, Nevada’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent ot
detect and cotrect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
cotrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to

merit attention by those charged with goveinance

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified Given these limitations, we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did
identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses that we consider to be significant deficiencies listed as finding 2013-001.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Yerington, Nevada’s
financial statements are free of matetial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Yerington’s Response to Findings

The City of Yerington’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and 1esponses. City of Yerington’s response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

é C,LQ&VQM, ~Co

Yerington, Nevada
November 5, 2014
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CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

A. Summary of Auditor’s Results:

(1) The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements of
the City of Yerington.

(2) One significant deficiency relating to the audit of the financial statements is repotted in
the Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

(3) No instances of noncompliance were disclosed which are material to the financial
statements of the City of Yerington, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

B. Findings — Financial Statements Audit

2014-001 The City of Yerington, Nevada is a very small entity. The fiscal officer and three
clerical clerks are assigned the duties of billing, accounts receivable and collections,
general ledger maintenance, payroll and expenditure disbursements, and co-signature
authority on checks and bank reconciliation functions. Controls are weakened when
the functions of recording, approval, and safeguarding of assets are performed by two
o1 three people. The entity’s ability to design internal controls to achieve complete
segregation of duties is limited due to fiscal restraints common to a small entity.

Management’s Response: Management has determined the cost of correcting this
significant deficiency in this small entity far exceeds the benefit derived fiom such
action. However with the limited number of staff, the delegation of duties among
personnel have been segregated to the greatest extent possible.
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B.

CITY OF YERINGTON, NEVADA
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
JUNE 30, 2014

Findings — Financial Statements Audit

2013-001

The City of Yerington, Nevada is a very small entity. The fiscal officer
and three clerical clerks are assigned the duties of billing, accounts
receivable and collections, general ledger maintenance, payroll and
expenditure disbursements, and co-signature authority on checks and bank
reconciliation functions. Controls are weakened when the functions of
recording, approval, and safeguarding of assets are performed by two or
three people. The entity’s ability to design internal controls to achieve
complete segregation of duties is limited due to fiscal restraints common
to a small entity

Management’s Response: Management has determined the cost of
correcting this significant deficiency in this small entity far exceeds the
benefit derived from such action. However with the limited number of
staff, the delegation of duties among personnel have been segregated to
the greatest extent possible.
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Sciarani & Co.

Certified Public Accountants
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORAIION

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON
NEVADA REVISED STATUILS 354.6241

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Yerington, Nevada

We have reviewed management’s assertion made in accordance with Nevada Revised
Statute 354-624(5)(a) with respect to the funds of the City of Yerington as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2014 that:

e The identified funds are being used expressly for the purposes for which that were
created.

o The Funds are administered in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

e The restricted fund balance/net position in the funds were 1easonable and
necessary to carry out the purposes of the funds at June 30, 2014 (based on the
interpretation of reasonable and necessary provided by the Legislative Counsel

Bureau).

e The sources of revenues, including transfers, -available for the funds are as noted
in the financial statements.

e The funds conform to significant statutory and regulatoly constraints on their
financial statements administration during the year ended June 30, 2014, with the
exception of one instance of expenditures in excess of budget appropriations as

teported in Note 16.
This assertion is the responsibility of the management of the City of Yerington

Our review was conducted in accordance with attestation standard established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants A 1eview is substantially less in
scope that an examination, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on
management’s assertion. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that
management’s assertion referred to above is not fairly stated in all material 1espects.

o %G
Yerington, Nevada

November 5, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S COMMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013
Statute Compliance
The required disclosure on compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada
Administrative Code is contained in Note 16 to the financial statements.
Prior Year Audit Recommendation

There were no specific recommendations made in the audit report for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013.

Current Year Audit Recommendations

The Schedule of Findings and Questioned Responses included in this audit report
provides a listing of our cusrent year recommendations.
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